
DOCKET NO. 

I ln the Matter of - IN THE MATTER OF THE 
m A P P L I C A T I O N  O F  YAK 
3 COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC. 
3 FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY 
m TO PROVIDE INTEREXCHANGE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN 
SOUTH DAKOTA 

Public Utilities Co~nrnission of the State sf South Dakota 

S T A T E  PUBLISHING CO.. PIERRE. SOUTH DAKOTA-SMBAD BZ B P I 4 1 3 0  

DATE . MEMORANDA 



THE GROUP 
Suite 500 
1200 19th Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20036 
tel (202) 955-9659 
fax (202) 955-9792 
thekdwgroup.com 

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLlC 
UTIUVIES COMMISSION 

D I R E C T  L I N E :  ( 2 0 2 )  955-9600 

EMAIL :  k b a r k e r @ k e l l e y d r y e . c o m  

July 14, 2003 

VIA UPS 

Ms. Debra Elofson 
Exec~~tive Director 
South Dakota Pulblic Utilities Coimnission 
State Capitol Building 
500 East Capitol Aven~~e  
Pierre, SD 57501 

Re: Application of Y alc Comm~mic,ations (Amesica) h c .  

Deas Ms. Elfoson: 

Enclosed please find for filing one original and ten (10) copies of the Application 
of Yak Coimn~li~ications (America) Inc. to provide lilterexcl~ailge Teleconml~mications Services 
witl~in the State of So~ltll Dakota. A check in the amount of $250 is included to cover the 
req~~isite filing fee. 

Please date stamp the d~~plicate of this filing and rehm it in the enclosed self- 
addressed, postage prepaid envelope. Thank you for your assistance in this matter and please 
feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Respectfully s~hnitte_d, 

Katllerine E . Barker 



Before the 

Application of 

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 
PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC. 
) 

For a Certificate of A~~thoiity Docket No. 
Necessity to Provide Resold h t e r e x c h ~ ~ g e  1 
Telecoinin~~nications Services in the ) 
State of Sotltll Dakota 1 

Yak Coim~unications (Arneiica) Inc. ("Yak" or "Applicant") hereby respectfully requests 

that the P~tblic Utilities Commission (ccConmission") gmnt it a Certificate A~~t l~or i ty  to provide 

resold interexchange telecoimll~lullicatiolls seivices tlrougl~o~lt the State of So~l t l~  Dakota. 

In s~lpport of this Application, Yak s~lbinits the following infonnation: 

I. The Applicant. 

1. Yak Cornm~lnications (Ameiica) h c .  is a cosporation organized ~ u ~ d e r  the laws of 

the State of Floiida on March 8, 2001. Yak is headq~~a-tered at 55 Town Centre Co~lrt, Suite 

6 10, Scarborougl~~ Ontario, Canada M 1 P 4x4. The telephone n~unbei- for Yak's coi-porate 

headq~~arters in (416) 296-71 11. The Company's Federal Tax ID Ntmber is 98-0349282. A 

copy of Yak's Articles of hcoiyoration is attached hereto as Exlzibit A. 

2. Yak is a~~thorized to transact business in the State of South Dakota as a foreign 

business entity. A copy of the q~~alifying doc~ment is attached hereto as Exlzibit B. The 

registered agent of Yak for seivice of process in South Daltota is : 



Corporation Service Company 
503 S Pierre 
Pieire, SD 57501-4522 

3. Charles Zwebner is the President and sole Director of Yak. Correspondence to 

Mi-. Zwebner inay be addressed to hiin at Yak's corporate headqtlarters, 55 Town Centre Co~trt, 

Suite 610, Scarborougll, Ontario, Canada M1P 4x4. Mr. Zwebner inay also be reached by 

telephone, at (416) 296-71 11. 

4. Yak Coininuilications (America) Inc. is a direct wholly owned s~lbsidiary of Yak 

Conun~~nications (USA) Inc. Yak Coimn~~nications (USA) Inc. is a Florida corporation fonned 

on December 24, 1998, and is headq~lartered at 55 Town Centre Coui-t, Suite 610, Scarborougll, 

Ontario, Canada M1P 4x4. Yak Conm~~i~ications (USA) Inc., by its other wholly owned 

s~lbsidiary, Yak Conm~inications (Canada) Inc., provides inteimational long distance discoulnt 

seivices to business and residential customers in Canada, piiinaiily by use of a 10-10-access 

platform. Yak Coi~un~~nications (Canada) Inc. is a Florida coiyoration formed on October 15, 

1998, and is headq~~ai-tered at 55 Town Centre Co~lrt, Suite 610, Scasborougl~, Ontario, Canada 

MlP  4x4. Yak Comn~~nications (Canada) Inc. is a~~tlloiized to provide facilities-based and 

resold Inteinational Telecornm~~nications Services tlx-ougl~o~~t Canada by a Class B License, 

effective April 16, 1999, and began its telecoimi~ications operations in Canada in June, 1999. 

5 .  Yak is in the process of obtaining a~ltllorizations to provide resold interexchange 

telecon~n~ulicatioils services nationwide. At the present time, the Applicant is a~~thorized to 

provide telecon~~n~uGcations services the following states: Califoinia, Colorado, Florida, 

Georgia, Illinois, Indiana, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massach~~setts, MiclGgan, Mississippi, 

Montana, Nevada, New Hainpshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, New York, Oregon, 



Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, Texas, Vermont and Washington. The Applicant is currently 

providing service on an unregulated basis in Virginia. 

6. Yak has not been denied authority to provide telecormn~u~cations services in any 

state. The Applicant has never been ~snder investigation, fined or cited for violation of any 

consumer protection law or regulation in any state or federal juiisdiction. 

11. Designated Contacts. 

7. The designated contact for all matters concerning this Application are: 

Katherine E. B arlter 
THE ISDW GROUP, LLC 
1200 lgt" Street, N.W. Suite 500 
WaslGngton, D.C. 20036 
Tel. (202) 955-9669 
Fax (202) 955-9792 

8. Copies of all col-sespondence, notices, inq~lisies and orders should also be sent to 

the designated representative for the Applicant, and the Applicant's initial contact for all 

regulatory and tariff matters: 

Ms. Robin Clarke 
Exec~~tive Adininistrator 
YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) LNC. 
5 5 Town Centre Co~~r t ,  Suite 6 10 
Scarborougl~, Ontario M 1 P 4x4  CANADA 
Tel. (416) 279-1364 
Fax (416) 279-1437 

111. Description of Proposed Services and Authority Requested. 

9. By tlGs Application, Yak seeks a~~thoiity to provide a fill1 array of resold 

interLATA and intraLATA interexclmnge telecolnm~~nications services to business and 

residential customers in the State of S o ~ ~ t h  Dakota. Specifically, Yak seeks authority to provide 

basic "I+" long distance services, otl~eiwise lmown as Message Teleco~nm~mications Service 

("MTS"), 10-10 casual calling services, and toll-free services. At a later date, Yak may expand 



its long distance offerings, to include a broader range of interexchange prod~lcts and services. 

Yak seelcs a~ltlloiity to provide telecornm~u~ications services on a statewide basis, and intends to 

target its marketing to residential customers in ethnic markets. 

10. At the present time, Yak intends to resell the interexchange telecomm~~nications 

services of eMelitus CommuiIications, Inc. However, the Applicant may in the fi~ture resell the 

interexchange telecoimn~snications services of other cai-siers appropriately certificated by the 

Conmission. 

IV. Qualifications of the Applicant. 

11. Yak possesses the teclmical, managerial and financial q~~alifications to provide the 

interexchange t e leco i~m~~~i~ ica t io~~s  services for which autl~oiity is requested by this Application. 

A. Technical and Managerial Qualifications. 

12. Collectively, the meinbers of Yak's management team have significant expeiience 

in the ciitical fi~nctions of network operations, telecoi~m~~nications prod~lct development, sales 

and marketing, business management and finance. Indeed, these individ~~als acquired sucll 

experience by their work in various segments of the telecomn~~~Iications ind~lstry psior to 

ass~uning their managerial roles in the development of Yak Comm~mications (Canada) lilc., 

which has tlvived as a provider of long distance services in Canada since 1999. The brief 

biographies of Yak's inanageinent team, attached hereto as Exlzibit C, demonstrate the 

inanageiial and teclmical competence of the Applicant. 

13. As a reseller of interexcl~ange telecoinm~u~ications services, Yak will necessarily rely 

tlpon the teclmical quality of its ~ulderlying caiiier, eMeiitus Coinnl~u~ications, lilc. However, 

Yak will take all possible steps to ensure that the services it provides meet or exceed the 

Co~~mission's standards for q~lality. 



B. Financial Qualifications. 

14. As a newly formed company, Yak does not have significant financial statements 

of its own, however, with the s~1ppol-t of its affiliates, Yak has sufficient financial capability to 

provide the resold interexcl~ange telecomn~u~ications services requested by this Application, and 

to compete effectively in the maslcet for such services in South Dakota. As a reseller, Yak will 

not require the extraordinary fillancia1 resources necessary to depIoy telecoln~n~lnications 

facilities. 

F~u-thelmore, the Applicant will have access to financial resources generated by the 

telecoimnunications operations of its related entities, Yak Comm~~nications (USA) h c .  and Yak 

Commn~mications (Canada) Inc., in Canada. Attached hereto as Exhibit D are copies of the 

audited financial statements for Yak Comn~~nications (USA) Inc. and Y alc Commn~mications 

(Canada) Inc., for the period ending J~me 3 0, 2002, including Balance Sheet, Statement of 

Income, Statement of Deficit, Statement of Cash Flows, Schedule of Expenses and Auditor's 

Notes. 

V. Customer Service Policies. 

15. Yak shall provide its customers with a single point of contact for the resolution of 

q~~estions, concerns and coinplaiilts. A staff of trained customer service personnel will be readily 

available to respond to all customer calls, and will be eq~~ipped with the expestise to immediately 

resolve the most cormnon customer service issues. For immediate personal assistance, customers 

may contact Yak's Call Centre toll-fi-ee, at 1-866-925-2355. The Call Centre is staffed from 7 

a.m. ~mtil 1 a.m., Monday tluougl~ Friday, and fi-om 9 a.m. ~liltil 9 p.m., Saturday and S~mday. 

Customers may also present their questions, complaints and concerns to Yak in writing, at the 

following address: 



Yak Colnm~mications (America) h c .  
344 Maple Avenue West 
# 352 
Vieima, VA 221 80 

16. Yak's customers will be billed by Billing Concepts Inc., a third pasty billing 

service employed by Yak. All charges for long distance telecoinm~~nications services payable to 

Yak will appear on the monthly bill issued by the customers' local telecomin~~nications service 

provider. For billing inquiries, customers may ~~t i l ize  the toll-fuee n~lmber for Billing Concepts 

Inc., 1-800-460-0556, which slmll appear on each monthly bill. All customer inq~liries received 

at this toll-free n~unber, with regard to charges billed by Yak, will be a~lton~atically ro~lted to 

Yak's Call Centre as Yak intends that such inquiiies be handled by its own customer service 

persoimel. Yak will ensure that all bills are in compliance with the Commission's i-ules and 

regulations. 

17. Yak intends to resolve all billing disp~ltes in the q~~icltest possible manner, by 

means of an escalating review process. In the event that Yak is ~mable to resolve a billing 

disp~lte, the affected custoiner may file a complaint with the Commission. A description of the 

customers' rights with regard to disputed Yak invoices, as well as the appropriate Commission 

contact for the resol~~tion of billing disputes, is provided in Yak's Proposed Tariff. 

VI. Proposed Tariff. 

18. Yak intends to provide resold interexchange telecoinmunicatiolls services 

p~~rsuailt to the tenns and conditions set forth in its Proposed Tariff, attached hereto as Exlzibit E. 

The Applicant will file a Final Tariff, in accordance with the Commission's proced~~res, prior to 

providing telecoi~un~ulicatiolls services in S o ~ ~ t h  Dakota. 

VII. Regulatory Treatment. 



19. The Applicant hereby agrees to abide by all stat~~tes, orders, mles and regulations 

prorn~~lgated by the Commission, ~mless the application of such is waived by the Commission, or 

otheswise preempted by the FCC or by federal statute. 

20. As a competitive provider of telecoinn~~mications services in So~~t l l  Dakota, the 

Applicant respectfully requests that it be s~lbject to the same streamlined treatment applicable to 

other competitive carriers. 

VIII. Public Interest Considerations. 

21. The Applicant's entry into the market for resold interexcl~ange 

teleco~mn~~ilications services in So~~ t l l  Dakota will selve the p ~ ~ b l i c  interest. Yak is well q~~alified 

to offer high quality, innovative t e leco im~~ica t io i~s  seivices to customers in South Daltota at 

conlpetitive rates. Conseq~~ently, Yak's presence will contlib~lte to competition in the inasket for 

resold interexchange telecomn~u~ications seivices in Sot~th Dakota. Over time, the growth of 

telecomnunications competition will bsing abo~lt improved service offerings at iilcreasingly 

competitive prices to the benefit of a broad range of consumers in South Dakota. F~u-theimore, 

the diversity of telecolml~~ulicatiolls providers in So~~t l l  Dakota will create inarltet incentives, 

product iimovation, improved seivice q~~ality, and greater consumer responsiveness. 



WHEREFORE, Yak Comm~~nications (America) Inc. respectfillly requests that the Ptlblic 

Utilities Colnlnission grant it a Certificate A~lthority to provide resold interexchange 

teleco~~m~u~ications services in the State of South Dakota. 

BY 
Brett Heather Freedson 
IQLLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP 
1200 lgt" Street, N.W. Suite 500 
Washington, D.C. 20036 

Katherine E. Barker 
Senior Consultant 
The KDW Gro~~p ,  LLC 
1200 lgt" Street NW, Suite 500 
Washington, DC 20036 

Dated: 



VERTFICATION 

1, Charles Zwebner , am authorized to represent Yak Communications (America) Inc., 

and to make this verification on its behalf. The statements in the foregoing document relating to 

Yak Communications (America) Inc., except as otherwise specifically attributed, are true of my 

own howledge, except as to matters that are stated herein on information or belief, and as to 

those matters, I believe them to be true. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is 

true and correct. 

b 
fore me on this (CP( day of 





I certify the attached is a true and correct copy of the Articles of Incorporation of 
YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA), INC., a Florida corporation, filed on 
March 8, 2001, as shown by the records of this office. 

The document number of this corporation is P01000025574. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Thirteenth day of March, 2001 



ARTICLE I - NAME AND BUSJNESS ADDRESS 

The name of this Corporation is Yak Communications (Arneriw), Iac. Its principal office 

address and business mailing address is 55 Town Centre, %lo, Scarborough, Ontario, Canada M1P 

4x4. 

ARTICLE II - DURATION 

The Corporation shall have a perpetual existence. 

The purpose of this Corporation is to engage in any activities or business permitted under the 

Laws of the United States and Florida. 

ARTICLE IS' - CAPITAL STOCK 

The &urn number of shares which this Corporation is authorized to have outstanding at 

any time is 10,000 shares of common stock, having a par value of S.01 per share. 

ARTICLE V - INITLAI; 
REGISTERED OF'l?ICE AND AGENT 

The street address of the initial registered office of this Corporation shall be 2601 South 

Bayshore Drive, Suite 1600, Miami, Florida 3313.3, and the initial registered agent of this 

Corporation at such office shall be Dennis J. Olle, Esq., who upon accepting this designation agrees 

to comply with the provisions of Chapters 48 and 607, Florida Statutes as amended &om time to 

time, with respect to keeping an office open for service of process. 



ARTICLE VI - lItTIUL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
- 

The initial Board ofDirectors shall consist of one member. The number qf directors may be 

&eased or decreased fiom time to time by vote of the Board ofDirectors, but in no case shall the 

number of directors be less than one nor more than nine. The name &d address of the director 

constituting the initial Board of Directors is: 

Name - 
Charles Zwebner 

Address 

55 Town Centre, %lo 
Scarborough, Ontario, Canada MlP 4x4 

ARTICLE V17: - INCORPORATOR 

The name and street addrers of the person signing these Articles of Incorpomtion is: 

Name Address 

Dennis J. Olle, Esq. Adorno & Zeder, P.A 
2601 South Bayshore Drive 
Suite 1600 
Miami, Florida 33 133 - /L A S &  
Dennis J. OUe, Esq., Incorporator 



I certify the attached is a true and correct copy of the Articles of Incorporation of 
YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA), INC., a Florida corporation, filed on 
March 8, 2001, as shown by the records of this office. 

The document number of this corporation is P01000025574. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Thirteenth day of March, 2001 



ARTICLE I - NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS 

The name of this Corporation is Yak Communications (Ameriw), hc .  Its principal oEce 

address and business mailing address is 55 Town Centre, ##6 10, Scarborough, Ontario, Canada MIP 

ARTICLE II - DURATION 

The Corporation shall have a perpetual existence. 

ARTICLE m - PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Corporation is to engage in any activities or business permitted under the 

Laws of the United States and Florida. 

AR.TlCLE IV - CAPITAL STOCX 

The maximum number of shares which this Corporation is authorized to have outstanding at 

any time is 10,000 shares of common stock, having a par value of S.01 per share. 

ARTICLE V - INITIAL 
REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The street address of the initial registered office of this Corporation shall be 2601 South 

Bayshore Drive, Suite 1600, Miami, Florida 3313'3, and the initial registered agent of this 

Corporation at such office shall be Dennis J. Olle, Esq., who upon accepting this designation agrees 

to comply with the provisions of Chapters 48 and 607, Florida Statutes as  amended &om time to 

time, with respect to keeping an office open for senice of process. 



ARTICLE VJ: - INITIAL BOARD OF DIRE;CTORS 
- 

The jnitial Board ofDirectors shall consist of one member. The number gf directors may be 

increased or decreased from time to time by vote of the Board ofDirectors, but in no case s h d  the 

number of directors be less than one nor more than nine. The name &d address of the director 

constituting the initial Board of Directors is: 

Name Address 

Charles Zwebner 55 Town Centre, #610 
Scarborough, Ontario, Canada M1P 4x4 

ARTICLE M7[ - INCORPORATOR 

The name and street address of the person signing these Articles of Incorporation is: 

Name Address 

Dennis J. Olle, Esq. Adorno & Zeder, P.A 
260 1 South Bayshore Drive 
Suite 1600 
Miami, Florida 33 133 

Dennis J. Olle, Esq., Incorporator 





OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE 

Certificate of Authority 
ORGANIZATIONAL ID #: FB027280 

I, Chris Nelson, Secretary of State of the State of South Dakota, hereby certify 
that the Application for a Certificate of Authority of YAK 
COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA), INC. (FL) to transact business in 
this state duly signed and verified pursuant to the provisions of the South Dakota 
Corporation Acts, have been received in this office and are found to conform to 
law. 

ACCORDINGLY and by virtue of the authority vested in me by law, I hereby 
issue this Certificate of Authority and attach hereto a duplicate of the application 
to transact business in this state. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I 
have hereunto set my hand and 
affixed the Great Seal of the State of 
South Dakota, at Pierre, the Capital, 
this May 2, 2003. 

Chris Nelson 
Secretary of State 

Cert of Authority 



Secretary of ~ t a t e  FILE NO. 
State Capitol 

RECEIPT NO. 
Pieri'e S 

Application for Certificate of Authority M1 02 b p ~ & *  
the undersigned corporation hereby applies for a ~ e r t # # a & & ~ #  to transact 

that purpose submits the following statement: W ECEI!!ED 
(1) The name of the corporation is Yak Communications (America), h c .  

(exact corporate name) ;gq 9 y ;;-::y 
. . a % .  i,, .:.i 

(2) If the name of the corporation does not contain the word "corporation': '~ompany","incorporated" or "limited" q~cJyy,kcyp$ 
an abbreviation of one of such words, then the name of the corporation with the word or abbreviation which it elects to add thereto foi- 
use in this state is 

(3) State where incorporated Florida Federal Taxpayer ID# 98-0349282 

(4) The date of its incorporation is March 8, 2001 and the period of its duration, which may be 
perpetual, is Perpetual 

(5) The address of its principal office in the state or country under the laws of which it is incorporated is 
2601 South Bayshore Drive, Suite 1600, Miami, Florida Zip Code 33133 
mailing address if different from above is: 55 Town Centre Court, #610, Scarborough, Ontario, Canada 

Zip Code M 1 P  4 x 4  

(6) The street address, or a statement that there is no street address, of its proposed registered office in the State of South Dakota is 
503 S o u t h  P i e r r e  S t r e e t ,  P i e r r e ,  SD 57501 Z i p c o d e  

and the name of its proposed registered agent in the State of South Dakota at that address i s _ c o r P o r a t i o n  S e r v i c e  C m n y  

(7) The purposes which it proposes to pursue in the transaction of business in the State of South Dakota are: (state specific purpose) 

T o  provide telecommunication services 

(8) The names and respective addresses of its directors and officers are: 

Name Officer Title Street Address City State Zip 

Charles Zwebner President/Secretary 55 Town Centre Court, Scarborough, Ontario, Canada M1P 4x4 
Charles Zwebner TreasurerIDirector 55 Town Centre Court, Scarborough, Ontario, Canada MIP 4x4 

(9) The aggregate number of shares which it has authority to issue, itemized by classes, par value of shares, shares without par value, 
and series, if any, within a class is: 

Number 
of Shares Class 

Common 

Ser ies  
Par value per share or statement that 
shares are without par value 

$.01 



(10) The aggregate numb'er of its issued shares, itemized by classes, par value of shares, shares without gar value, and series, if any, .- 
within a class, is: 

Number Par value per share or statement that 
o f  Shares Class Ser ies  shares are without par value 

10,000 Common $.01 

(1 1) The amount of its stated capital is $ 100 00 
Shares issued times par value equals stated capital. In the case of no par value stock, stated capital is the consideration received for the 
issued shares. 

(12) This application is accompanied by a CERTIFICATE OF FACT or a CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING duly 
acknowledged by the Secretary of State or other officer having custody of corporate records in the state or country under whose laws it 
is incorporated. 

(13) That such corporation shall not directly or indirectly combine or make any contract with any incorporated company, foreign or 
domestic, through their stockholders or the trustees or assigns of such stockholders, or with any copartnership or association of 
persons, or in any manner whatever to fix the prices, limit the production or regulate the transportation of any product or commodity so 
as to prevent competition in such prices, production or transportation or to establish excessive prices therefore. 

(14) That such corporation, as a consideration of its being permitted to begin or continue doing business within the State of South 
Dakota, will comply with all the laws of the said State with regard to foreign corporations. 

The application must be signed, in the presence of a notary public, by the chairman of the board of dirxtors, or by the president or by 
another officer. 

I DECLARE AND AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT T TRUE AND CORRECT. 

~~~~d S e p t e m b e r 3  , 2 0 0 2  

STATE OF Ontar io 
COUNTY OF 

I, 
A n t h o n y  G r e e n w o o d  , a notary public, do hereby certify that on this 30 day 

personally appeared before me Charles Zwebner 

is the President of Yak  Communications (America), Inc. 1, that helshe signed the foregoing document as 

officer of the corporation, and the statements therein contained are true. n 

............................................................................... 
L t  of Appointment below must be signed by the registered agent listed in number sir. . . - - - 

Consent of Appointment by the Registered Agent 

oration 

- - 
Service Comvanv 

I (name of registered aienti 
I agent for Yak  C o ~ i ~ n i c a t i o i i s  (AmGrica), 

- - 
hereby give my consent to serve as the registered 

Inc. 



q.p. C;!:c (jFzertqj'E 
b J L - c .  

I certify from the records of this office that YAK COMMUNICATIONS 
(AMERICA), INC., is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Florida, filed on March 8, 2001. 

The document number of this corporation is PO1 000025574. 

I further certify that said corporation has paid all fees due this office through 
December 31, 2002, that its most recent annual reporthniform business report 
was filed on May 21, 2002, and its status is active. 

I further certify that said corporation has not filed Articles of Dissolution. 

Given under my hand and the 
Great Seal of the State of Florida 

at Tallahassee, the Capitol, this the 
Twenty-first day of February, 2003 

K- w+ 
Fen $bfzner 

CR2E022 (1 -03) s ~ r ~ r e k t ~  &sf& 





MANAGEMENT BIOGRAPHIES FOR 
YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC. 

Charles Zwebner: 
Founder, President, Chief Executive Officer 
Prior to fo~ulding Yak Coimn~mications (America) Inc. in 1998, Mi-. Zwebner 
served as the President of CardCaller Canada h c .  ("CadCaller"), and as a member of 
Cardcaller's Board of Directors, for six years. Mr. Zwebner fo~u~ded CardCaller in 1992, and 
remained significantly involved in the coi-poratioi-~'s design, development, production, and 
man~~facture of the first Canadian fixed ano~mt prepaid inultiling~~al telephone calling card. 
Prior to fo~mding CadCaller, Mr. Zwebner seived as Vice President of the Mortgage 
Depai-tinent of Conciimity Corporation, Inc. from 1 987- 1 992, where he handled utndeiwriting, 
management, and syndication of residential and coinnlercial mortgage portfolios. Mr. Zwebner 
holds a B.A. in Coinp~lter Science and Business Adininistration fi-om York University. 

Robin Clarke: 
Executive Administrator 
Ms. Clarke has several years of nla~lageinent experience in the telecomn~ulicatioils industry. 
Prior to joining Yak Comn~~nications (America) Inc., Ms. Clarke managed several major 
teleconm~u~ications projects, including the establislunent of a new "One Plus" department, the 
creation of a telecoimn~u~ications customer billing progranl, and the installation of A~~toinated 
Bailking Machines in the white label inalcetplace. Ms. Clarke also served as a customer service 
representative for a teleconm~nications service reseller. 

Margaret Noble: 
Controller 
Since her accreditation as a Certified Management Accountant in 1985, Ms. Noble has held 
various acco~mting and strategic planning positions in the high teclmology, entei-tainment, and 
telecoinrn~~ilications ind~lstries. In particular, Ms. Noble worked to impleinent acco~mting 
systeins and proced~~res for Dome Prod~~ctions and Magnetic North prior to joining Yak 
Coimn~u~ications (Ameiica) Inc. Ms. Noble also seived as an Advisor for the Acco~uting & 
Financial Management Advisory Coimnittee for Centennial College, in Scarborougl~, Ontario. 
At the present time, Ms. Noble selves as the Treasurer for the United Way of Ajax/Piclceiing. 

Jaquie Capote: 
Switch and Network Engineering 
Ms. Capote has an extensive baclcgro~md in systems design, planning, maintenance, and 
hardware and software installation, config~u-ation and integration. Prior to joining Yak 
Coimn~ulications (Ameiica) hc . ,  Ms. Capote was employed by AT&T Canada, most recently as 
a supervisor and systeins administrator. Ms. Capote earned a degree in Comp~~ter Programming 
froin Seneca College in 1992. Ms. Capote is fi~i-ther recognized as a Certified Technician for the 
Hanis 20-20 Switch and as a Telecoilun~~ilicatioils Specialist by Centeiluial College. 



Andrew Boone: 
Call Centre Manager 
Mr. Boone joined YAK with 10 years of Call Centre expelience, 5 years of which was spent in 
the Telecomm~mications ind~~stry. Mr. Boone has been instnlinental in developing sales and 
customer service programs in several call centres. Along with his superior co~nrnunication and 
team building sltills Mr. Boone has brought with him a quest for ultilnate customer satisfaction. 
His exemplary customes service and sales record has helped hiin develop a team of Call Centre 
professionals second to none. 

Taras Kapanailto: 
Chief Technical Officer 
Mr. Kapanaiko has over 8 years of Telecoinm~mications experience, holding Senior Network 
engineering and system positions at AT&T Canada Inc, International Telecoim~ulicatiol~s 
Services, Smart Talk Network and EDS Canada. Mr. Kapanailto has an extensive background in 
building and maintaining coinplex voice networlts and bacltend support systems while exploiting 
the latest teclmologies available, namely standard TDM to various flavors of soft switcl-Ling and 
VoP.  Mr. Kapanaiko is the former fo~ulder of TIU and Associates (April 1998 -April 2002), a 
telecomm~~nications consulting company with contracts serving A~~ro ra  Intemational, an 
international private line reseller, and Axxess Telecom, a wholesale prepaid long distance 
provider. Mr. Kapanailto holds an International Business Diploma from Centennial College and 
telecol111n~u1ications certifications froin Nortel Networks. 

Angela Le Donne: 
Manager Human Resources & Office Services 
Ms. Le Donne holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The University of Westem Ontasio. She has 
5 years of teleconun~lnications experience. She started with Sprint Canada h c .  in 1998 as the 
Administrative Assistant for the Project Management department. In 1999 she transitioned from 
Project Management to an Exec~ltive Assistant role in the Regulatory Affairs department. Also 
in 1999, Ms. Le Dome decided to go back to school on a part-time basis, in pru-suit of her 
H~linan Resources Professional designation. She was s~lbseq~~ently offered a Coordinator 
position in the H ~ m a n  Reso~u-ces department at Splint Canada in 2000. With over two and a half 
years of H ~ ~ m a n  Reso~~rces experience, she has had a great deal of exposue to the various areas 
of H ~ m a n  Resources, assisting in the area of Compensation and Benefits, Recnlitinent, Training 
and Development and Employee Relations. 

Ms. Le Dome's responsibilities at Yak Coi~mlnications incl~zde providing advice and co~lnsel to 
hiring managers and employees on employee relations issues, benefits management, payroll 
administration, recnlitment and HR policy development and iinplementation. On the Office 
services side, Ms. Le Donne oversees the maintenance of all office eq11ipinent, coordination of 
office iinprovements/renovatiolls and other general office administration issues. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
Yak Communications (USA), Inc. 
Miami, Florida 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Yak Communications (USA), 
Inc. and Subsidiaries (the "Company") as of June 30, 2002 and 2001 and the related consolidated 
statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended. These 
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis of our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Yak Communications (USA), Inc. and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 
2002 and 2001 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Chartered Accountants 

Toronto, Canada 
August 2,2002 



YAK COMMUNCATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
4 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

Note 2002 2001 

$ $ 

ASSETS 

CURRENT 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable, net 
Prepaid expenses and sundry 
Income taxes recoverable 
Deferred costs 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 

DEPOSITS 

LICENCE FEES 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

- 1 -  



YAK CONINlUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

Note 2002 2001 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Amounts due for network access and usage 
Amounts due to long distance carriers 
Amounts due for equipment 
Due to Factor 
Note payable 
Due to related parties 
Current portion of obligations under 

capital leases 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
Obligations under capital leases 
Loan payable - related party 
Advances from Telus Comunications Inc. 

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 

COMMON STOCK 11 20 1,52 1 194,151 
SERIES A CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK 11 - 497,000 
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 1,733,060 764,359 
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - 

TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENT 67,232 31,585 

DEFICIT 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



YAK COMMUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Accumulated 
Additional Series A other 

---Common s tock---- paid-in --Preferred stock-- comprehensive Stocld~olders' 
Shares Amount capital Shares Amount income Deficit Equity (Deficit) 

Balance, June 30,2000 

Common stock issued for conversion 
of debt to equity 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Net loss 

Balance, June 30,2001 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 

Common stock issued under employee stock 
award 

Common stock issued for conversion of 
debt to equity 

Common stock i s s ~ ~ e d  for conversion of 
preferred stock into common stock 

Dividends on preferred stock 

Net income 

Balance, June 30,2002 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



YAK COMMUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIAFUES 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS * 

YEARS EISDED JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

Note 2002 2001 

NET REVENUE 

COST OF REVENUE 

GROSS MARGIN 

EXPENSES 
Selling, general and administration 
Accounts receivable financing 
Organizational and start-up costs 
Refinancing costs 
Employee stock award 
Writedown of property and equipment and licence fee 
Interest on capital lease obligations 
Interest on long-term debt 
Depreciation and amortization 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES 

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF 
COMMON SHARES - ASSUMING 
DILUTION 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

- 4 -  



YAK C O M h m T I C A T I O N S  (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

CONSOLlDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 
e 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 

cash provided by operating activities 
Depreciation and amortization 
Employee stock award cost 
Writedown of property and equipment and licence fee 
Deferred income taxes 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease (increase) in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses and sundry 
Deferred costs 
Deposits 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
Amounts due for network access and usage 
Amounts due to long distance carriers 
Amount due for equipment 
Due to Factor 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayments on obligations under capital leases 
Repayments under loan payable 
(Repayments) advances fromlto related parties 
Dividends paid 
Repayments on note payable 
Advances from Telus Communications Inc. 

Net cash (used in ) provided by financing activities 

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information: 
Interest paid 
Non-cash investing and financing activities: 
Common stock issued for services 
Conversion of loan payable to common stock 
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock 
Obligations under capital leases incurred 

in connection with acquisition of equipment 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 



YAK COM~4UNICATlONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSMESS 

Yak Communications (USA) Inc. is a switch based reseller specializing in offering dial-around 
long-distance services to consumers. The Company was incorporated in the State of Florida on 
December 24, 1998 and operates as a holding company of its wholly-owned subsidiaries in the 
United States and Canada. 

The Company's began offering its services to consumers in Canada in July 1999 and in the 
United States commencing December 200 1. 

The Company is dependent upon its ability to obtain ongoing sources of financing to find its 
working capital requirements for continuing development and operations. While the Company 
has in the past, been able to maintain access to adequate external financing sources on 
acceptable terms, no assurance can be given that such access will continue. 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States and reflect the following policies: 

a ion Principles of consolid t' 

These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Yak Communications (USA), 
Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries - Yak Communications (America), Inc. and Yak 
Communications (Canada) Inc. (collectively hereinafter referred to as the "Company"). All 
intercompany balances and transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. 

Revenue recognition 

The Company records revenue from the sale of dial-around services and the resale of long- 
distance services at the time of customer usage based upon minutes of use. 



YAK COn'lPIUNlCATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIAFUES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLmATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Cost of revenue 

Cost of revenue includes network costs that consist of the cost of long-distance services, 
processing costs, line access and usage costs. These costs are recognized when incurred. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These 
estimates are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in 
earnings in the period in which they become known. 

Computation of earnings (loss) per common share 

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing the earnings (loss) attributable to 
common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the 
period. Diluted earnings per share is computed giving effect to  all dilutive potential common 
shares that were outstanding during the period. Dilutive potential common shares consist of 
incremental common shares issuable upon exercise of convertible preferred stock and stock 
options. The effect of potential common stock has been excluded from the computation of 
diluted loss per share during 2001 as the effect would be antidilutive. 

Foreign currency translation and foreign assets 

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS"), 
No. 52, "Foreign Currency Translation," assets and liabilities of the Company's foreign 
subsidiary were translated into United States dollars at the exchange rates in effect on the 
reporting date. Income and expenses are translated at an average exchange rate for the 
respective period. For the foreign subsidiary which utilizes its local currency as its fimctional 
currency, the resulting translation gains and losses are included in other comprehensive income. 
Gains or losses resulting from foreign exchange transactions are reflected in earnings. 



YAK CONIMUIVICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
e 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash and term deposits with original maturity dates 
of less than 90 days. 

Deferred costs 

Certain costs relating to providing services in new locations, incurred prior to  the 
commencement of operations, are deferred and amortized over a period of one year, 
commencing 30 days after operations commence. 

Property and equipment 

Property and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation which is provided on the 
straight-line and declining balance methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows: 

Telecom switching systems 
Billing, administration and customer 

service systems 
Carrier identification codes loading 
Office firniture and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Computer hardware 
Automobile 
Installed lines 

20% declining balance 

20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 
over term of the lease 
20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 
20% declining balance 

Cost includes major expenditures for improvements and replacements which extend useful lives 
or increase capacity of assets as well as expenditures necessary to place assets into readiness for 
use. Costs incurred during the application development stage are capitalized and amortized 
over the estimated usehl life of the systems. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are 
expensed as incurred. 



YAK CORIRIUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Property and equipment (cont'd) 

The Company periodically evaluates the realizability of its property and equipment. In making 
such evaluations, the Company compares certain financial indicators such as expected 
undiscounted fbture revenues and cash flows to the carrying amount of the assets. During the 
year ended June 30, 2002 the Company wrote down property and equipment and licence fee 
with a net book value of $67,595 and believes that no fbrther impairment exists. 

Assets under capital lease are amortized using rates consistent with similar assets. 

Licence fees 

The cost of license fees are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over 3 years. 

Income taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 109 "Accounting for Income Taxes" which requires an asset and liability 
approach to financial accounting and reporting for income taxes. Deferred income tax assets 
and liabilities are computed annually for differences between the financial statement and tax basis 
of assets and liabilities that will result in taxable or deductible amounts in the fiture based on 
enacted tax laws and rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to 
affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred 
tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The income tax provision is the tax payable or 
refbndable for the period plus or minus the change during the period in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities. 

Cost of Start-up Activities 

The Company expenses the cost of start-up activities and organizational costs as incurred in 
accordance with statement of position 98-5 "Reporting on the Costs of Start-up Activities". 



YAK COMMUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
4 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Advertising and promotion expense 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. The costs of promotional marketing materials are 
deferred and expensed as used. 

Stock option plan 

The Company accounts for stock options issued to employees in accordance with SFAS No. 
123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, which permits entities to continue to apply the 
provisions of Accounting Principles Board ("APB") Opinion No.25, "Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees", and provide pro forma disclosures of the effect on net income (loss) and 
net income (loss) per share for employee stock option grants as if the fair value based method, 
as defined in SFAS No. 123, has been applied. The Company has elected to apply the 
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and provide the pro forma disclosures required by SFAS No. 
123. Under APB Opinion No. 25, the Company recognizes no compensation expense related to 
employee stock options, as no options are granted at a price below the fair market value on the 
day of grant. 

Comprehensive income 

The Company reports and presents comprehensive income and its components in accordance 
with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. SFAS No. 130 requires only 
additional disclosures in the consolidated financial statements; it does not affect the Company's 
financial position or results of operations. 

Other comprehensive income is comprised of the foreign translation adjustment arising from 
the conversion from Canadian dollars to  U.S. dollars and is presented as a separate component 
of stockholders' equity. 



YAK CONIRIUNICATIONS (USA), IIVC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLI~ATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Comprehensive income (cont'd) 

Comprehensive income for the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 are as follows: 

Net income (loss) 
Foreign currency translation 

adjustment 

Fair value of financial instruments 

SFAS No. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of 
the fair value of certain financial instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value. 
For purpose of the disclosure requirements, the fair value of a financial instrument is the 
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing 
parties, other than in a forced sale or liquidation. The carrying values of cash, receivables, 
accounts payable, and other current liabilities are reasonable estimates of their fair value due to 
the short-term maturity of the underlying financial instruments. The carrying value of the 
capital leases is a reasonable estimate of its fair value based on current rates for equipment 
obligations. 

The estimated difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the loan payable to a 
related party in which no interest has been charged is not significant. As of December 31, 
2001, this loan was repaid by the issuance of 200,000 common shares of the Company. 



YAK COMNIUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLXDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2002 2001 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 

Credit risk 

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk 
consist principally of trade accounts receivable. The Company has in place systems to prevent 
and detect fraud. The Company's system limits credit to,any one customer in the amount of 
$225 without formal approval. On occasion, defaults occur on receivables. The Company 
makes a provision when deemed necessary. As of June 30, 2002 and June 30, 2001, the 
allowance for doubtful accounts was approximately $1 9,600 and $198,200, respectively. 

Reclassifications 

Certain classifications were made to prior year balances to conform to the current year 
presentation. 

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

Property and equipment consist of the following: 

Accumulated 
Cost depreciation ------- Net book value------- 

Telecom switching systems 
Billing, administration and 

customer service systems 
Carrier identification codes loading 
Ofice furniture and equipment 
Leasehold improvements 
Computer hardware 
Automobile 
Installed lines 



YAK COMMUNlCATlONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARPES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (cont'd) 

Telecom switching systems include assets under capital leases having a net book value of 
$858,000 as of June 30, 2002 and $1,072,000 as of June 30, 2001. 

Depreciation expense for property and equipment including equipment under capital leases for 
the years ended June 30, 2002 and 2001 was $423,000 and $413,000, respectively. 

4. DUE TO FACTOR 

The amounts due to factor are secured by a pledge of the Company's accounts receivable (see 
note 8). The Company has an agreement to sell an undivided interest in certain accounts 
receivable with recourse to a Factor. Payments are collected by the Factor from the sold 
accounts receivable; the collections are reinvested by the Factor in new accounts receivable of 
the Company, and a yield, as defined in the agreement is transferred to the Factor. As at June 
30, 2002, the amount sold under the agreement, expiring February 2004, that had not been 
collected was $3,808,000 (June 30, 2001 - $2,393,000) which will be forwarded to the 
Company once collected after repayment of the Factor's advances. 

5. NOTE PAYABLE 

The note is payable to a director and shareholder which bears interest at 8% and is due July 3 1, 
2002. The note was repaid in full during the current year. 

6 .  DUE TO RELATED PARTIES 

The amounts due to a corporation controlled by a shareholder are non-interest bearing and due 
on demand. The amounts were repaid in full during the current year. 



YAK COMNIUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSlDIARJES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

7. OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES 

The Company's capital leases are for terms of 24 months at annual interest rates ranging from 
9.25% to10.50%. 

The future minimum lease payments required under the capital lease agreements are as follows: 

Total minimum lease payments 145,506 
Amounts representing interest 6,426 

Principal 139,080 
Current portion 129,110 

8. LOAN PAYABLE - RELATED PARTY 

The Company has entered into an agreement with a corporation (lender), which is controlled 
by a shareholder and director of the Company to provide cash advances or third party loans up 
to $435,000 based upon available accounts receivable. The cash advances bear interest at 12% 
and the interest rate on any third party advances shall not exceed the bank's prime rate plus 1- 
112%. The lender has agreed to waive any interest calculated on its cash advances provided the 
credit is not in default. As security for these advances, the Company has agreed to pledge its 
accounts receivable (subordinate to the prior pledge disclosed in note 4) and has provided a 
general security agreement over all its assets. This agreement expires March 15, 2006 at 
which time the loan is due on demand. As of June 30, 2001, $41 5,030 was advanced under 
this agreement. On December 3 1, 2001, this loan which had a balance of $398,071 was repaid 
by the issuance of 200,000 shares of the Company's common stock. 



YAK COMMUNICATlONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

9. DUE TO TELUS COMMUNICATIONS INC. (Telus) 

Telus provides the Company with marketing credits to a total maximum value of $3,250,000. 
The marketing credits are calculated as 25% of the value of monthly billed revenue to the 
Company by Telus in the preceding month to a maximum of $270,000 per month. 

The Company is restricted to spend this amount on advertising and promotional activities 
within sixty days of the credits being advanced to the Company. 

Marketing credits will be repaid commencing July 1, 2003 and ending June 30, 2006. 
Repayments are by way of paying an additional $0.005/minute1 at a minimum of $90,000 per 
month. The repayments are non-interest bearing as long as no payments are in default. 

10. DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
income tax purposes. The deferred tax liabilities of June 30, 2002 relate to the difference 
between the depreciation used for Canadian tax purposes and financial reporting purposes. 

As of June 30, 2002, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards for U.S. Federal 
income tax purposes of $300,000 which may provide future income tax benefits expiring 
between 2020 and 2020. 

Realization of the net operating loss carryforward is dependant on generating sufficient taxable 
income before expiration of the loss carryforwards. As such Management has provided a 
valuation allowance for the full amount of the deferred tax asset of $100,000 as of June 30, 
2002 related to the U.S. operations. 



\'AK COMMUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSlDLARlES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

11. CAPITAL STOCK 

Common stock 

100,000,000 shares authorized, no par value, stated value $0.01 per share. 

On June 29, 2001, 202,758 common shares were issued for the conversion of a debt to a 
related party of $366,000. 

On December 28, 2001, 40,000 common shares were issued to employees under an employee 
stock award. 

On December 31, 2001, 200,000 common shares were issued for the conversion of a debt to a 
related party of $398,071. 

Series A convertible preferred stock 

500,000 shares authorized, par value $1 .OO per share. 

These shares are convertible at the holders' option into common stock at a conversion rate of 
one share of common stock for each share of Series A preferred stock. The holders of Series A 
preferred stock are entitled to receive an annual cash dividend of 4% per share. The dividend 
arrears on the Series A convertible preferred stock is $32,700 at June 30, 2001. The Company 
may redeem the Series A preferred stock at a redemption price of $1.00 per share. On June 30, 
2001, 497,000 shares of Series A preferred stock were converted into common stock. 



YAK CONlNlUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

12. COMMITMENTS 

The Company has lease commitments for its premises which expire at various dates through 
March 2007. The fiture minimum lease payments are as follows: 

13. STOCK OPTION PLAN 

Effective June 30, 1999, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan (the "Plan") which permits 
the issuance of stock options to selected employees and directors. The Company reserved 
640,000 shares of common stock for grant under the Plan. Options granted may be either 
nonqualified or incentive stock options and will expire no later than 20 years from the date of 
grant (10 years for incentive options). No options have been issued under this plan. 

On December 21, 2000, nonqualified options for 1,284,000 common shares were granted to an 
individual who is a director and chief executive officer and are exercisable at $1.56 per share 
on or before December 3 1, 2003, or upon the sale of the Company. In the event of the chief 
executive officer's death or termination of employment prior to the exercise of the options and 
before December 31, 2003, the Company is obligated to purchase the optioned shares at a 
price equal to the fair market value of the shares less the option price. The purchase 
consideration of the option shares shall be in stock of the Company. 

If compensation cost for the Company's grants for stock-based compensation had been 
recorded consistent with the fair value-based method of accounting per SFAS No. 123, the 
Company's pro forma net income (loss), and pro forma basic and diluted net income (loss) per 
share for the years ending June 30, would be as follows: 



YAK COMMUNICATlONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

2002 2001 

13. STOCK OPTION PLAN (cont'd) 

Net income (loss) as reported 
Pro forma net income (loss) 
Basic net income (loss) per share 

As reported 
Pro forma 

Diluted net income (loss) per share 
As reported 
Pro forma 

14. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

(a) Office rent of $72,000 was paid and property and equipment of $25,624 was purchased 
from a corporation of which the Company's chairman is a shareholder and director. 

(b) The Company paid marketing and design fees for the years ending June 30, 2002 and 2001 
of $70,125 and $70,763 respectively to a corporation controlled by an officer and 
shareholder. 

(d) The Company paid professional fees for the years ending June 30, 2002 and 2001 of 
$72,O3 8 and $14,344 respectively to a director and minority shareholder. 

(e) The Company paid consulting fees for the years ending June 30, 2002 and 2001 of 
$96,900 and $94,669 to a corporation controlled by a minority shareholder. 

( The Company paid a financing fee and guarantee fee to a Corporation controlled by the 
Company's chairman of $l44,87 1. 

(g) Prepaid expenses and sundry assets include advances made during the year of $69,291 to a 
corporation of which the Company's chairman is a shareholder and director. 

These transactions have all been accounted for at their exchange amounts. 



YAK COMNIUNICATIONS (USA), INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIBATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30,2002 AND 2001 

15. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The Company is dependent in Ontario and Quebec upon Bell Canada and in British Columbia 
and Alberta upon Telus Corp. to provide billing and collection services to its customers under 
a renewable agreement. The Company is also dependent upon TELUS Communications Inc. 
to provide billing, transport and handling services under a renewable agreement which expires 
in June 2003. 

16. ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred which includes direct-mail advertising, 
newspaper and television advertising. Advertising expense for the years ended June 30, 2002 
and 200 1 were approximately $1,484,000 and $l,O97,OOO, respectively. 

17. SEGMENTED AND RELATED INFORi?lATION 

The Company operates in one reportable segment in two geographic regions - Canada and the 
United States. Summary information with respect to the Company's operations by geographic 
regions are as follows: 

Net revenue 
Canada 
United States 

Operating profit (loss) 
Canada 
United States 

Assets 
Canada 
United States 
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TARIFF 

Yak Communications (America) Inc. 

TOLL SERVICES RESELLER TARIFF 

R~lles and regullations applicable for fimishing to Customers of Resold Intrastate Interexchange Services 
' 

by Yak Conmu~nications (America) Inc. between one or more points in the State of South Dakota as 
authorized by the Public Utilities Conmlission. This Tariff is on file with the Public Utilities Colnrnission 
and may be inspected d~~r ing  regular business ho~u-s. Copies also may be inspected during regular 
business houlrs at Yak Comm~~nications (America) Inc.'s principal place of business, 610-55 Town 
Centre Court, Scarborough, ON MlP 4x4 
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CEIECK SHEET 

The following pages, inclusive of this Tariff, are effective as of the date shown. Orignal and revised 
pages, as named below, comprise all changes from the original Tariff in effect on the date indicated. 

Page Revision Page Revisions 

Original 
Orignal 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Orignal 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 
Original 

Original 
Orignal 
Orignal 
Original 

:': signifies new or revised pages 
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SYMBOLS 

The following are the only symbols used for the purposes indicated below: 

(R) To signify a reduction in rate. 

(I) To signify an increase in rate 

(C) To signify a changed regulation 

(T) To signify a change in text but no change in rate or regulation 

(S) To signify reissued matter 

) To signify a new rate or regulation 

(D) To signify a discontin~~ed rate or regulation 

Issued: Effective: 
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TAJXDF FORMAT 

A. Page N~~mbering - Page numbers appear in the upper right corner of the page. Pages are 
numbered seq~~entially. However, new pages occasionally are added to the tariff. When a new 
page is added between pages already in effect, a decimal is added to the page n~~mber.  For 
example, a new page added between pages 14 and 15 would be 14.1. 

B. Page Revision N~~mbers  - Revision n~~mbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. 
These numbers are used to determine the most current page version on file with the commission. 
For example, the 4t" revised Page 14 cancels the 3'* revised Page 14. Because of various 
suspension periods, deferrals, etc. the Commission follows in its tariff approval process, the most 
c~ment page n~mber  on file with the Con-mission is not always the tariff page in effect. 

C. Paragraph N~~mbering Sequence - There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of 
coding is subservient to its next higher level: 

D. Check Sheets - W11en a tariff filing is made with the Commission an ~~pdated check sheet 
accompanies the tariff filing. The check sheet lists the pages contained in the tariff, with a cross 
reference to the current revision n~~mber.  When new pages are added, the check sheet is changed 
to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated on the check sheet by 
an asterisk("). There will be no other symbols used on the check sheet if these are the only 
changes made to it. The tariff user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular 
page is the most c~u-rent on file with the Commission. 

Issued: Effective: 
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SECTION 1. - DEFINITIONS 

Authorized User - Any person, firm, corporation or other entity accessing or utilizing the services 
fi~mished by the Company to the Customer. 

Billed Partv - The person or entity responsible for payment of the Company's service. The 
Billed Party is the Customer associated with the Telephone N~~mber used to place the call, with 
the following exceptions: 

(a) in the case of a calling card or credit card call, the Billed Party is the holder of 
the calling card or credit card used by the User; and 

(b) in the case of a collect or third party call, the Billed Party is the person 
responsible for the local telephone service at the telephone number that agrees to 
accept charges for the call. 

Call -A  completed connection between the calling and the called station. 

Calling Station - The telephone number from which a call originates. 

Called Station - The telephone n~~mber  called. 

Casual Calling (Dial-aro~md) - Arrangement whereby long distance customer, not pre-s~bscribed 
to Company, dials a specified code (ie., 10-10-XXX) to access the Company's interexchange 
services on an ad hoc basis. 

Commission - S o ~ ~ t h  Dakota P~lblic Utilities Commission. 

Companv - Yak Comm~mications (America) Inc. 

Customer - A person, firm, corporation, partnership or other business entity, including affiliates 
or divisions of the Customer, responsible for payment of charges to the Company and compliance 
with all terms and conditions of this Tariff. 

& - The period of time from 7:00 a.m. ~ultil (but not including) 7:00 p.m., Monday through 
Friday, as measured by local time at the location from which the call is originated. 

Dial-aro~md calling - See Casual Calling. 

Evening - The period of time from 7:00 p.m. until (b~tt not including) 11 :00 p.m., S~lnday 
through Friday and any time d~~r ing  a Holiday, as measmed by local time at the location from 
which the call is olignated. 

Holiday - New Year's Day, Memorial Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, 
and Christmas Day. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
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SECTION 1 - DEFINITIONS (Cont'd) 

NightNVeeltend ("N/Wltd") - The period of time from 11:OO p.m. until (but not including) 7:00 
a.m., Monday through Friday, any time on Saturday and all day Sunday, except 7:00 p.m. ~ultil 
(but not including) 11:OO p.m., as measmed by local time at the location from which the call is 
origmated. 

Off-Peak Period - Except as otherwise agreed between Company and Customer, the h o ~ m  fiom 
7:00 pm ~mtil but not including 7:00 am. 

Peak Period - Except as otherwise agreed between Cornpany and Customer, the hours from 
7:00 am until b~l t  not including 7:00 pm. 

Pres~lbscribed Customers - Customers who have fonnally selected the Company as their 
interexchange services provider. The selection is programmed by the local exchange camer so 
that these customers' long distance calls are routed a~~tomatically to the Company, without use of 
a special access code. 

Service Order - A written request for network services executed by the Customer and the 
Company in the format devised by the Company. The signing of a Service Order by the 
Custon~er and acceptance by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set 
fort11 therein and purs~zant to this Tariff, b~zt the d~zration of the service is calculated from the 
service commencement date. 

User - Customer or any A~zthorized User. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Communications (America) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Cenixe C O L ~  
Scarborough, ON MlP  4x4 



South Dakota Public Utilities Commission Tariff No. 1 
Original Page No. 9 

SECTION 2. - TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

2.1 Application of Tariff 

2.1.1 This Tariff contains the regulations and rates applicable to resold intrastate long distance 
services provided by the Company to Customers througho~~t the State of South Dakota. 
Services are provided p~u-suant to the general terms and conditions of this Tariff, except 
as otherwise negotiated between a Customer and the Company. Additionally, services 
are fknished s~ibject to the availability of facilities and the terms and conditions of this 
Tariff. 

2.1.2 The rates and regulations contained in this Tariff apply only to the services fimrnished by 
the Company and do not apply, ~mless otherwise specified, to the lines, facilities, or 
services provided by a local exchange telephone company or other Common Carrier for 
use in accessing the services of the Company. 

In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this Tariff shall for any reason be 
held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under the laws of the j~~isdiction 
governing the entire Tariff, such invalidity, illegality or  menf force ability shall not affect any other 
provision of this Tariff, and this Tariff shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or 
 menf force able provision or provisions had never been contained herein. 

2.3 Shortage of Equipment or Facilities 

2.3.1 The Company reserves the right to limit or to allocate the use of existing facilities, or of 
additional facilities offered by the Company, when necessary because of lack of facilities, 
or d ~ ~ e  to some other cause beyond the Comnpany's control. 

2.3.2 The f~unishing of service ~mder this Tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing 
basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's 
facilities as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish 
service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Comnpany. 

Issued: Effective: 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.4 Use and Availability of Service 

2.4.1 Service shall not be used for any unlawfid purpose, nor used in such a manner as to 
interfere unreasonably with the use of service by any other Users. 

2.4.2 The use of the Company's services without payment for service or attempting to avoid 
payment for service by fraudulent means or devices, false or invalid numbers, or false 
calling or credit cards is prohibited. 

2.4.3 The Company does not transmit messages p~~rsuant to this Tariff, but its services may be 
used for that purpose. 

2.4.4 The Company's services may be denied for nonpayment of charges or for other violations 
of the tenns and conditions set forth in this Tariff. 

2.4.5 The Company reserves the right to refuse service to individuals under the age of 18 and 
may require proof of age prior to initiating service. 

2.4.6 The use of the Company's services to make calls which might reasonably be expected to 
frighten, abuse, tonnent, or harass another is prohibited. 

2.4.7 Service temporarily may be refi~sed or limited because of system capacity limitations, 
and is subject to transmission limitations caused by natural (including atmospheric, 
geographic or topographic) or artificial conditions adversely affecting transmission. 

2.4.8 Service to any or all Customers may be temporarily interrupted or curtailed due to 
eq~~ipment modifications, ~lpgrades, relocations, repairs and similar activities necessary 
for proper or improved operations. 

2.4.9 Customers may be required to enter into written Service Orders which shall contain or 
reference a specific description of the service ordered, the rates to be charged, the 
duration of the services, and the tenns and conditions in the Tariff. Customers also will 
be required to exec~lte any other documents as may be reasonably requested by the 
Company. 

2.4.10 Except as othe~wise agreed between the Company and Custonler, at the expiration of the 
initial term specified in a Service Order, or in any extension thereof, service shall 
continue on a month to month basis at the then current rates ~nless  terminated by either 
party upon 30 days' written notice. Any termination shall not relieve Customer of its 
obligation to pay any charges inc~~rred under the service order and this Tariff prior to 
termination. The rights and obligations which by their natwe extend beyond the 
termination of the term of the Service Order shall survive such termination. 

Issued: Effective: 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.5 Liability of the Cornpaw 

2.5.1 Because the Company has no control of communications content transmitted over its 
system, and because of the possibility of errors incident to the provision and use of its 
service, service furnished by the Company is s~ibject to the terms, conditions and 
limitations herein specified. 

2.5.2 The Company sl~all not be liable for any delay or failure of perfolmance or equipment as 
a result of causes beyond its control, including b~ t t  not limited to: (a) delays caused by the 
other party or (b) acts of God, fire, flood, explosion or other catastrophes; any law, order, 
regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or of any other 
government, including state and local governments having or claiming j~uisdiction over 
the Company, or of any department, agency, commission, bmeau, corporation, c o ~ ~ r t  or 
other instr~unentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or 
of any civil or militaly authority; national emergencies; ins~~rrections; riots; wars; 
~navailability of rights-of-way or materials; strikes, loclto~~ts, work stoppages, or other 
labor difficulties; and (c) third party nonperfoi-mance (including the fa i l~~re  of 
perfolmance for reasons beyond the control of common carriers, interexchange carriers, 
local exchange carriers, s~tppliers and subcontractors), or other cause beyond its 
reasonable control, including failures or fluctuations in electrical equipment, and such 
nonperformance shall not be deemed a violation of this Tariff or of the application for 
service or grounds for telmination of service. Both parties retain all rights of recourse 
against any third parties for any fail~~res which may create a force majeure condition for 
the other party. 

2.5.3 The Company shall not be liable for (a) any act or omission of any entity f~~rnishing to 
the Company or to the Company's Customer's facilities or eq~tipment used for 
interconnection with network services; or (b) for the acts or omissions of common 
carriers or warehousemen even if the Company has acted as the Customer's agent in 
arranging such facilities or services. No agents or employees of other participating 
carriers shall be deemed to be agents or employees of the Company without written 
authorization. 

2.5.4 The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses resulting from or caused by 
(a) the act, omission, fault or negligence of the Custon~er; (b) the failt~re or malfimction 
of Customer-provided equipment or facilities; or (c) claims against the Customer by any 
other party. 

2.5.5 The liability of the Company for errors in billing that res~dt in overpayment by the 
Customer shall be limited, ~mless otherwise ordered by the Commission, to a credit equal 
to the dollar amoumt erroneously billed or, in the event that payment has been made and 
service has been discontinued, to a refimd of the amount erroneously billed. 

Issued: Effective: 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.5 Liability of the Company (Cont'd.) 

2.5.6 The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations it 
provides for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer indemnifies and holds the 
Company harn~less from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action, or any 
liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party or 
person(s), and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by 
the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by 
the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, 
location, or use of any installation so provided. The Company reserves the right to 
require each Customer to sign an agreement acknowledging acceptance of the provisions 
of this section 2.5.6 as a condition precedent to such installations. 

The Company is not liable for any damages, including toll usage charges, the Customer 
may inc~ir as a result of the ~lnauthorized use of its telephone facilities. This una~lthorized 
use of the Customer's facilities includes, b~ l t  is not limited to, the placement of calls from 
the Customer's premises, and the placement of calls through Customer-provided 
equipment that are transmitted or carried on the Company network. Company may work 
with Customers to recommend possible sol~ltions to redlice unauthorized use of their 
facilities. However, Company does not warrant or guarantee that its recommendations 
will prevent all ~ma~lthorized use, and the Customer is responsible for controlling access 
to, and use of, its own telephone facilities. 

2.5.8 The Company shall not be liable for and the Customer shall indemnify and hold the 
Company harmless against any claims for loss or damages involving 

(a) Protection of the Custonler's transmission facilities 01 eq~lipment from 
~mauthorized access, or for any ~mauthorized access to or alteration, theft or 
destruction of Customer's data files, programs, proced~lre or information tlxough 
accident, fraudulent means or devices or any other method; 

(b) Changes in any of the facilities, operations or procedures of the Company that: 
(1) render any equipment, facilities or services provided or ~ltilized by the User 
obsolete; (2) require modification or alteration of such equipment, facilities or 
services; or (3) othelwise affect use or performance of such equipment, facilities 
or services except where reasonable notice is required by the Company and is not 
provided to the Customer. 

Issued: Effective: 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.5 Liability of the Company (Cont'd.) 

Defacement of or damage to the Customer's Premises or personal property 
resulting from the furnishing of services or eq~~ipment on such Premises or the 
installation or removal thereof, when such defacement or damage is not the result 
of Company's negligence. The Customer will indemnify and hold harmless 
Company from any claims of the owner of the Customer's premises or other third 
party claims for such damages. 

Any wrongful act of a Company employee where such act is not a~~thorized by 
the Company and is not within the scope of the employee's responsibilities for 
the Company; 

Any noncompleted Calls due to network busy conditions; and 

Any Calls not actually attempted to be completed during any period that service 
is ~~navailable. 

Libel, slander or infi-ingement of copyright arising directly or indirectly from the 
material transmitted over facilities provided by the Company; 

Infiingements of patents arising from combining apparatus and systems of the 
Customer with facilities provided by the Company; 

Any act or omission in connection with provision of 911, E911, or similar 
services; 

Any representations made by a Company employee that do not comport with or 
that are inconsistent with the provisions of tlus Tariff. 

2.5.9 The Customer shall reimburse the Company for all costs, expenses and fees incurred by 
the Company in its defense against claims set forth in Section 2.5.8. 

2.5.10 The Company is not liable to Customers for interruptions in service except as set forth in 
Section 2.16 of this Tariff. 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.5 Liability of the Company (Cont'd) 

2.5.1 1 The Company shall be indemnified, defended, and held harmless by the Customer against 
any claim, loss or damage arising directly or indirectly from use of services, involving 
but not limited to claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of 
copyright, arising from either the Customer's own con~munications or from any content 
or other use of the services provided to Customer, whether a~lthorized by the Customer or 
not, including infringement of patents arising fiom combining apparahls and systems of 
the Customer or a third party with facilities provided by the Company. 

2.5.12 Unless ordered otherwise by the Commission, the entire liability for any claim, loss, 
damage or expense arising out of mistalces, omissions, interruptions, delays, errors or 
defects in the service, the transmission of the service, or failures or defects in facilities 
finished by the Company, occ~u~ing in the course of furnishing service, from any cause 
whatsoever shall in no event exceed sums achdly paid to Company by Customer for the 
specific services giving rise to the claim. No action or proceeding against the Company 
shall be commenced more than one year after the event(s) giving rise to the claim. 
Except in instances of gross negligence or willf~ll misconduct of the Company's agents or 
employees, the Company shall not be liable for any direct, indirect, consequential, 
special, achlal or punitive damages, or for any lost profits of any lund or nature 
whatsoever arising out of any defects or any other cause, including loss of profits or 
revenues suffered by a Customer as a result of interrupted or unsatisfactoly service, even 
if the Company has been advised of the possibility of such damages. 

2.5.13 The Company shall not be liable for inj~uy to property or death to persons, including 
claims for payments made under Worlcers' Compensation law or ~mder any plan for 
employee disability or death benefits, arising out of, or caused by, any act or omission of 
the Customer, or the construction, installation, maintenance, presence, use or removal of 
the Customer's facilities or equipment connected, or to be connected to the Company's 
facilities. 

2.5.14 THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR 
OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR USE, EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN. 
The Company does not a~rthorize anyone to malce a warranty of any lcind on its behalf 
and the Customer should not rely on any such statements. 
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SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.6 Notification of Service-Affecting; Activities 

2.6.1 The Company will provide the Customer reasonable notification of service-affecting 
activities that may occur in nolmal operation of its business. Such activities may 
include, b ~ i t  are not limited to, equipment or facilities additions, removals or 
rearrangements and ro~itine preventative maintenance. Generally, such activities are not 
specific to an individ~~al Custonler b ~ ~ t  affect many Customers' services. No specific 
advance notification period is applicable to all service activities. The Company will work 
cooperatively with the Custon~er to determine the reasonable notification requirements. 
With some emergency or unplanned service-affecting conditions, such as an o~itage 
resulting from cable damage, notification to the customer may not be possible. 

2.7 Ownership of Facilities 

2.7.1 Title to all facilities provided in accordance with this Tariff remains in the Company, its 
agents or contractors. 

2.7.2 The Company shall use reasonable efforts to male available services to a Customer on or 
before a particular date, s~ibject to the provisions of, and compliance by the 
Custonler with, the regulations contained in this Tariff. The Company does not guarantee 
availability by any such date and shall not be liable for any delays in commencing 
service to any Customer. 

2.8 Prohibited Uses 

2.8.1 The services the Company offers shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any 
use as to which the Customer has not obtained all required governmental approvals, 
authorizations, licenses, consents and permits. 

2.8.2 The Company may req~~i re  applicants for service who intend to use the Company's 
offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that 
their use of the Company's offerings complies with relevant laws and Conlmission 
regulations, policies, orders, and decisions. 

2.8.3 The Company may require a Customer to ilnmediately sh~ut down its transmission of 
signals if said transmission is causing interference to others. 

2.8.4 The Company shall use reasonable efforts to maintain facilities and eq~iipment that it 
f~l~nishes to the Customer. The Customer may not, nor may Customer permit others to 
rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or otherwise interfere with any of the 
facilities or eq~~ipment installed by the Company, except upon the written consent of the 
Company. 
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2.8 Prohibited Uses (Cont'd) 

2.8.5 The Company may substitute, change or rearrange any equipment or facility at any time 
and from time to time, but shall not thereby alter the technical parameters of the 
service provided the Customer. 

2.8.6 Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer Premises for use in 
connection with the services the Company offers shall not be used for any purpose other 
than that for which the Company provided it. 

2.8.7 The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges as set forth herein 
for visits by the Company's agents or employees to the Premises of the Customer when 
the service difficulty or tro~lble report results from the use of equipment or facilities 
provided by any party other than the Company, including b~lt  not limited to the Customer. 

2.8.8 The Company shall not be responsible for the installation, operation, or maintenance of 
any customer provided comm~~nications equipment. Where such eq~~ipment is connected 
to the facilities fimished pursuant to this Tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall 
be limited to the fimishing of facilities offered ulnder this Tariff and to the maintenance 
and operation of such facilities. S~ibject to this responsibility, the Company shall not be 
responsible for: 

(a) the transmission of signals by Customer provided equipment or for the quality of, 
or defects in, such transmission; or 

(b) the reception of signals by Customer provided equipment. 

2.9 Nonroutine Installation 

2.9.1 At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the 
Company's regular business ho~~rs ,  or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges 
based on the cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the 
Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business h o ~ r s  but, at the 
Customer's request, extends beyond regular business h o ~ m  into time periods including, 
b ~ ~ t  not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply. 
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2.10 Obligations of the Customer 

2.10.1 The Customer shall be responsible for: 

placing any necessary orders, complying with Tariff regulations and assuring that 
Users comply with Tariff regulations. The Customer shall ensure compliance 
with any applicable laws, regulations, orders or other req~~irements of any 
governmental entity relating to services provided by the Company to the 
Customer or made available by the Customer to another User. The Customer 
also is responsible for the payment of charges for all Calls originated at the 
Customer's n~lnlbers which are not collect, third party, calling card, or credit card 
calls. 

taking all necessary legal steps for interconnecting Customer-provided terminal 
eq~lipment or comm~mications systems with Company's facilities or services. 
Custonler shall ensure that the equipment andlor system is properly interfaced 
with Company's facilities or services; that the signals emitted into Company- 
provided network facilities are of the mode, bandwidth, power, signal level or 
other technical parameters for the intended use of the Customer and in 
compliance with the criteria set forth in this Tariff, and that the signals do not 
damage equipment, inj~u-e personnel or degrade service to other Customers. If 
Customer fails to maintain the equipment and/or system properly, with resulting 
imminent harm to Company's personnel or q~lality of service to other Customers, 
Company may, upon written notice, require the use of protective equipment at 
the Customer's expense. If this fails to prod~~ce satisfactory q~~ali ty and safety, 
Company may, upon written notice, terminate the Customer's service. 

payment of all charges incurred to the Calling Station regardless of which party 
terminates the service. The Customer shall reimb~~rse the Company for all costs, 
expenses and fees inc~~rred by the Company in collecting such charges. 

charges inc~~rred for special constmction and/or special facilities which the 
Customer requests and which are ordered by the Company on the Customer's 
behalf. 

damage to or loss of the Company's facilities or eq~~ipment caused by the acts or 
omissions of the Customer; or the Customer's officers, employees, agents or 
contractors, or the noncompliance by the Customer with these regulations; or 
by fire or theft or other casualty on the Customer Premises, unless caused by the 
gross negligence or willfid misconduct of the employees or agents of the 
Company; 
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2.10 Obligations of the Customer (Cont'd) 

providing at no charge, as specified from time to time by the Company, any 
needed personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Conlpany facilities and 
equipment installed on the prenises of the Customer Premises, and the level of 
heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper operating 
environment on such premises; 

obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having fbll responsibility for all lights-of- 
way and conduits necessary for installation of fiber optic cable and associated 
equipment used to provide services to the Customer from the cable building 
entrance or property line to the location of the equipment space described in 
2.10.l(f). Any costs associated with obtaining and maintaining the lights-of- 
way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit 
installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by, or may 
be charged by the Company to, the Customer; 

arranging access to its Premises at times mutually agreeable to the Company and 
the Customer when required for Conlpany personnel to install, repair, maintain, 
program, inspect or remove equipment associated with the provision of the 
Company's services. 

not creating or allowing any liens or other encumbrances to be placed on the 
Company's equipment or facilities. 

The Customer agrees, except where the events, incidents or eventualities set forth in this 
sentence are the result of the Company's gross negligence or willful nlisconduct, to 
release, indemnify and hold harmless the Company against any and all loss, claims, 
demands, suits or other action or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, 
instituted or asserted by the Customer or by any other party or person, for any personal 
injury to or death of any person or persons, or for any loss of or damage to any property, 
whether owned by the Custon~er or others. The Custonler shall reimburse the Company 
for all costs, expenses and fees incurred by the Company in its defense against such 
actions. 

All accounts will be s~ibject initially, on a nondiscriminatoly basis, to a $40/month limit 
or "cap" on usage charges. Customers reaching this limit, upon their next use of the 
Company's service, will be connected to Company's Call Centre. Customers will be 
granted an increase of the capped amount upon satisfaction of the Company's credit 
criteria. The amount of the increase will be determined based upon Customer's historic 
usage of the Comnpany's services as well as Customer's creditworthiness. 
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Claims 

2.11.1 With respect to any service or facility provided by the Company, Customer shall 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Company from and against all claims, actions, 
damages, liabilities, costs and expenses related to, arising from or for: 

(a) any loss, destruction or damage to property of the Conlpany or any third party, or 
the death or inj~uy to persons, including, but not limited to, employees or invitees 
of either party,to the extent caused by or resulting from the 
negligent or intentional act or omission of the Customer, its employees, agents, 
representatives or invitees; 

(b) any claim, loss, damage, expense or liability for infringement of any copyright, 
patent, trade secret, or any proprietary or intellectual property right of any third 
party, arising from any act or omission by the Customer, including, without 
limitation, use of the Conlpany's services and facilities in a manner not 
contemplated by the agreement between Customer and Company; 

(c) providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations 
regarding the worlcing conditions on the premises at which Company employees 
and agents shall be installing or maintaining the Conlpany's facilities and 
eq~~ipment. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Comnpany 
facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, 
inj~uy or damage to the Company's employees or property might result 
frominstallation or maintenance by the Company. The Customer shall be 
responsible for identifying, monitoring, removing and disposing of any 
hazardous material (e.g. fnable asbestos) prior to any consb-uction or installation 
work; or 

(d) complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, 
approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location 
of Company facilities and equipment in any Customer premises or the rights-of- 
way for which Customer is responsible under section 2.10.l(g); and granting or 
obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the premises of 
the Customer at any time for the purpose of installing, inspecting, maintaining, 
repairing, or upon termination of service as stated herein, removing the facilities 
or eq~~ipment of the Company. 
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2.12 Customer Equipment and Channels 

2.12.1 A Customer may transmit or receive information or signals via the facilities of the 
Company . 

2.12.2 Customer terminal equipment on the Customer Premises, and the electric power 
cons~~med by such eq~iipment shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the 
Customer. 

2.12.3 The Customer is responsible for ensuring that Customer-provided equipment connected 
to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such eq~~ipment and facilities. 
The magnitude and character of the voltages and c~ments impressed on Company- 
provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such 
equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company-provided 
equipment and wiring or inj~uy to the Company's employees or to other persons. Any 
additional protective eq~lipment req~~ired to prevent such damage or inj~uy shall be 
provided by the Company at the Customer's expense. 

2.12.4 Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities 
and eq~lipment of the Company used for f~unishing services and the channels, facilities, 
or equipment of others shall be provided at the Custon~er's expense. 

2.12.5 The Company's services may be connected to the services or facilities of other 
comm~mications carriers only when a~~thorized by, and in accordance with, the terms and 
conditions of the tariffs of the other co~nm~mications carriers which are applicable to such 
connections. 

2.13 Inspections 

2.13.1 Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may 
male such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the 
Customer is complying with the requirements set forth in section 2.12.3 for the 
installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer-provided facilities, equipment, 
and wiring in the connection of Customer-provided facilities and eq~~ipment to Company- 
owned facilities and equipment. 
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2.13 Inspections (Cont'd) 

2.13.2 If the protective requirements for Customer provided equipment are not being complied 
with, the Company may tale such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, 
equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is 
any need for fi~rther corrective action. Within ten days of receiving this notice, the 
Customer must take t h s  corrective action and notify the Company of the action taken. If 
the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is 
deemed necessary, including the suspension of service, to protect its facilities, equipment 
and personnel from harm. 

2.14 Payment Arrangements 

The Customer is responsible for the payment of all charges for facilities and services f~~rnished by 
the Conlpany to the Customer. 

2.14.1 Taxes 

The Customer is responsible for the payment of any sales, use, gross receipts, excise, 
access or other local, state and federal taxes, charges or s~~charges (however designated) 
(excluding taxes on the Company's net income) imposed on or based upon the provision, 
sale or use of services. 

2.14.2 Billing and Collection of Charges 

Except as otherwise negotiated between the Company and a Customer, the following 
terms and conditions shall apply: 

2.14.2.1 The Customer is responsible for payment of all charges incurred by the 
Customer or by other users, with or without appropriate authorization from 
the Customer, for services and facilities fiunished to the Customer by the 
Company. The Customer shall not be excused from paying the Company for 
such services on the basis that the use of the service was ~mauthorized. 

2.14.2.2 The Company shall present invoices to the Customer monthly for Usage 
Charges and any applicable Recurring Charges, and these charges shall be due 
and payable within 30 days after the invoice is mailed. In its sole discretion, 
the Company may arrange to invoice through a Customer's local exchange 
carrier, p~~rsuant to the latter's billing cycle. 
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2.14 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd) 

2.14.2 Billing and Collection of Charges (Cont'd) 

2.14.2.3 If any portion of the payment due for undisputed charges is not received by 
the Company on or before the date d~le, or if any portion of the payment is 
received by the Company in f~mds which are not immediately available, then 
the Customer's acco~mt shall be delinquent, and a late payment penalty shall 
be due to the Company. The d ~ ~ e  date shall be no earlier than thirty (30) 
days after the invoice is mailed. The late payment penalty shall be the portion 
of the payment not received by the date d ~ ~ e ,  nl~~ltiplied by a late factor. The 
late factor shall be the lesser of (a) 1.5% of the total monthly bill; or (b) the 
highest interest rate whichmay be applied ~mder applicable state law for 
commercial transactions. 

2.14.2.4 Billing of Pres~~bscribed Customers 

In addition to the preceding requirements of this Section 2.14.2, the following 
terms and conditions shall apply to pres~~bscribed Customers: 

Service is provided on the basis of a minimum period of at least 
one month, 24-horns per day. For the purpose of computing 
charges in this Tariff, a month is considered to have 30 days. 

When service does not begin on the first day of the month, or 
end on the last day of the month, the charge for the fraction of 
the month in which service was f~~mished will be calculated on a 
pro rata basis. For this purpose, every month is considered to 
have 30 days. 

Billing of the Customer by the Company will begin on the 
service commencement date, which is the first day following the 
date on which the Conlpany notifies the Customer that the 
service or facility is available for use, except that the service 
commencement date may be postponed by mutual agreement of 
the parties, or if the service or facility does not confonn to 
standards set forth in this Tariff or the Service Order. Billing 
accrues through and includes the day that the service, circuit, 
arrangement or component is discontinued. 
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2.14 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd) 

2.14.3 Deposits & Advance Payments 

The Company will not collect deposits or advance payments from its Customers. 

2.14.4 Discontinuance of Service 

The Company may discontinue service or cancel an application for service, with ten 
days' written notice and without incurring any liability, for any of the following reasons: 

2.14.4.1 Failure of the Customer to pay a non-disp~~ted delinquent acco~mt; 

2.14.4.2 Failure of the Customer to make satisfactoly arrangements to pay anearages 
or meet the requirements of a payment agreement; 

2.14.4.3 Failme of the Customer to permit the Company to have reasonable access to 
its equipment, facilities, service connections or other property; 

2.14.4.4 Failure of the Customer to provide the Company with adequate assurances 
that an  unauthorized use or practice will cease; 

2.14.4.5 Customer violation of any regulation governing the service under this Tariff, 
or a violation of any law, rule, or regulation of any govelnment authority 
having jurisdiction over the service; 

2.14.4.6 Customer fraud or material misrepresentation of identity for purpose of 
obtaining telephone service; 

2.14.4.7 Failwe of the Customer to adhere to contr-actual obligations with the 
Company; or 

2.14.4.8 Where the Company is prohibited from fimishing services by order of a co~u-t 
or other government a~ithority having jurisdiction. 
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2.14 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd.) 

2.14.4 Discontinuance of Service (Cont'd.) 

The Company may terminate service without notice to the Customer for any of the 
following occurrences: 

2.14.4.9 Customer's maintenance or operation of its equipment in such a manner as to 
adversely affect the Company's eq~lipment or service to others; 

2.14.4.10 Custonler non-compliance with any provision of this Tariff which results in 
threatening the safety of a person or the integrity of the service delively 
system of the Company; 

2.14.4.1 1 The existence of a condition on the Customer's premises detennined by the 
Company to be hazardous; 

2.14.4.12 Customer tampering with the Conlpany's equipn~ent or service; 

2.14.4.13 Customer's ~nautl~orized or illegal use of the Company's service or 
equipment. 

Tlie Company may ref~lse to provide dial-aro~lnd or "casual calling" services to 
Customers based  yon nonpayment of charges for services previously provided andlor 
Customer non-compliance with or violation of (a) any of the telnls and conditions of this 
Tariff or (b) applicable state and federal regulations governing the services provided 
under this Tariff. 
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2.14 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd.) 

2.14.5 Cancellation of Application for Service 

Applications for service may be cancelled, prior to commencement of services, s~lbject to 
the following conditions: 

2.14.5.1 Where, prior to receiving notice of cancellation, the Company incurs any 
expense installing or preparing to install the service or in connection with 
special constnlction, or where special arrangements of facilities or equipment 
have begun, a charge equal to the costs inc~ured, less net salvage, applies. In 
such cases, the charge will be based on such elements as the cost of the 
equipment, facilities, and material, the cost of installation, engineering, labor, 
and supervision, general and administrative expense, other disb~~rsements, 
depreciation, maintenance, taxes, provision for return on investment, and 
any other costs associated with the special construction or arrangements. 

2.14.5.2 In no case shall the charges exceed the sum of (a) the charge for the minim~lm 
period of service ordered, including installation charges, and (b) all charges 
levied by other parties against the Company that would have been chargeable 
to the Customer had service beg~ul. 

2.14.6 Cancellation of Service Order 

Service Orders ~lpon which delivery has commenced may not be cancelled except as 
specified in the applicable Service Order and s~ibject to the cancellation payment 
identified for the contracted minimum call volunle. 

2.14.7 Changes in Service Requested 

If the Customer makes or requests material changes in circuit engineering, equipment 
specifications, service parameters, premises locations, or otherwise materially 
modifies any provision of the application for service, the Customer's installation fee shall 
be adjusted accordingly. 
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2.15 Disputed Charges 

2.15.1 All bills are presumed acc~u-ate, and shall be binding on the Custon~er ~n l e s s  objection is 
received by the Company within thirty days. A disp~tted charge may be brought to the 
Company's attention by verbal or written notification. All charges remain d~ t e  and 
payable at the due date, although the Customer is not required to pay any disp~lted 
charges d~lring the time period in which the Company conducts its investigation into the 
charges. The ~mdisp~tted portion and s~lbseq~~ent bills must be paid on a timely basis, or 
the service may be s~lbject to disconnection. 

In the event that a billing disp~ite between the Customer and the Company for service 
f~lrnished to the Customer cannot be settled with m~ltual satisfaction, the Customer may 
talce the following course of action: 

2.1 5.1.1 The Customer may request, and the Company will provide, an in-depth review 
of the disp~tted amo~mt. During the period that the disp~lted amount is under 
investigation, the Comnpany shall not pursue any collection proceedings or 
assess late fees with regard to the disp~lted amo~tnt. 

2.15.1.2 If there is still a disagreement about the disputed amount after investigation 
and review by the Company, the Customer may file an appropriate complaint 
with the Putblic Utilites Commission. The address of the Conmission is: 

P~b l i c  Utilities Commission 
Capitol Building, 1 st floor 
500 East Capitol Avenue 
Pierre, SD 57501-5070 

Phone: (605)773-3201 
Toll Free Complaints: 1-800-332-1782 

2.15.2 Billing inquiries may be directed to the Company toll free at (866) 925-2355. 
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2.16 Allowances for Interruptions in Service 

2.16.1 Interruptions in service, which are not due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with 
the provisions of this Tariff by, the Customer or the operation or malfimction of the 
facilities, power or equipment provided by the Customer, will be credited to the 
Customer as set forth in this Section 2.16. for the part of the service that the intern~ption 
affects. 

2.16.2 Credit for Intelruptions 

2.16.2.1 A credit allowance will be made when an intemlption occ~us because of a 
failure of any component fi~mished by the Company under this Tariff. An 
intein~ption period begins when the Customer reports a service, facility or 
circuit to be interrupted and releases it for testing and repair. An inten-~~ption 
period ends when the service, facility or circuit is operative. If the Customer 
reports a service, facility or circuit to be inoperative but declines to release 
it for testing and repair, it is considered to be impaired, but not inteinlpted. No 
credit allowance will be made for a service facility or circuit considered by 
the Company to be impaired. 

2.16.2.2 For calculating credit allowances, every month is considered to have 30 days. 
A credit allowance is applied on a pro rata basis against the rate applicable to 
the sellrice and is dependent upon the length of the intern~ption. Only those 
facilities on the inteln~pted portion of the circuit will receive a credit. 

2.16.2.3 At the Customer's request, a credit allowance for a continuous intemption of 
service for more than twenty-four (24) h o ~ m  will be made in an amo~~nt  to be 
determined by the Company on a case-by-case basis. 

2.16.2.4 In the event a pres~~bscribed Customer is affected by such intern~ption for a 
continuous period of less than twenty-fo~~r (24) ho~~rs ,  no adjustments will be 
made. 
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2.16 Allowances for Interruptions in Service (Cont'd) 

2.16.3 Limitations on Allowances 

No credit allowance will be made for: 

(a) inten-uptions due to the negligence of, or noncompliance with the provisions of 
this Tariff by, the Customer, authorized user, joint user, or other conmon carrier 
providing service connected to the service of the Comnpany; 

(b) inteln~ptions due to the negligence of any person other than the Company, 
including but not limited to the Customer or other common carriers connected to 
the Company's facilities; 

(c) intem~ptions due to the fail~u-e of power, eq~~ipment, systems or services not 
provided by the Company; 

(d) intern~ptions of service during any period in which the Company is not given fill1 
and free access to its facilities and equipment for the purpose of investigating and 
correcting intemmptions; 

(e) intem~ptions of service d~uing a period in which the Customer contin~~es to use 
the service on an impaired basis; 

(f) inteln~ptions of service d~u-ing any period when the Customer has released 
service to the Company for maintenance purposes or for implementation of a 
Customer order for a change in service arrangements; and 

(g) inteln~ption of service due to circumstances or causes beyond the control of 
Company. 

(h) intem~ptions that occur or continue to occ~u- ddue to the Customer's fail~u-e to 
authorize replacement of any element of special constn~ction; and 

(i) intern~ptions that were not reported to the Company within thirty (30) days of the 
date that service was affected. 

2.16.4 In addition to any credits for service interruptions issued pmsuant to the provisions of this 
section 2.16, the Company may issue credits to Customers reporting other service 
problems. 
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2.17 Transfers and Assignments 

Neither the Company nor the Customer may assign or transfer its rights or duties in connection 
with the services and facilities provided by the Company without the written consent of the other 
party, except that the Company may, after receiving any required approvals from the Public 
Service Commission, assign its rights and duties (a) to any subsidiary, parent company or affiliate 
of the Company, (b) pursuant to any sale or transfer of the assets of the Company, or (c) pursuant 
to any financing, merger or reorganization of the Company. 

2.18 Notices and Communications 

2.18.1 The Customer shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Company 
shall mail or deliver all notices and other communications, except that Custon~er may 
also designate a separate address to which the Company's bills for service shall be 
mailed. 

2.18.2 The Company shall designate on the Service Order an address to which the Customer 
shall mail or deliver all notices and other comm~mications, except that Company may 
designate a separate address on each bill for service to which the Customer shall mail 
payment on that bill. 

2.1 8.3 All notices or other communications required to be given pursuant to this Tariff will be in 
writing. Notices and other communications of either party, and all bills mailed by the 
Company, shall be pres~lnled to have been delivered to the other party on the third 
business day following placement of the notice, comm~u~ication or bill with the US .  Mail 
or a private delivery service, prepaid and properly addressed, or when actually received 
or refi~sed by the addressee, whichever occurs first. 

2.18.4 The Company or the Custonler shall advise the other party of any changes to the 
addresses designated for notices, other communications or billing, by following the 
procedures for giving notice set forth herein. 

2.19 Temporarv Promotional Programs 

2.19.1 The Company may establish temporary promotional programs wherein it may waive or 
reduce non-retuning or recurring charges, to introduce present or potential Customers to 
a service not previously received by the Customers. Insofar as required by Commission 
regulations, the Company will file notice of its proposed promotions with the 
Commission. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Conlnlmications (Anlexica) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Centre Court 
Scarborough, ON M1P 4x4 



Yak Cornnt zirt icatiorts (Ant erica) Irtc. S o ~ t h  Dakota Public Utilities Commission Tariff No. 1 
Original Page No. 30 

SECTION 3. - EXPLANATION OF' RATES 

The regulations set forth in this section explain how to apply the rate table associated with the various 
services offerings described in Section 4. 

3.1 Timing of Calls 

3.1.1 Billing for calls placed over the Company's underlying carrier's network is based on the 
d~~ration of the call. Timing begins when the called station is answered, as determined by 
standard i nd~~sby  methods generally in use for ascertaining answers, including answer 
s~lpervision hardware by which the local telephone company sends a signal to the switch 
or the software utilizing audio tone detection. Timing ends when either party hangs LIP. 

3.2 Computation of Charges 

3.2.1 Calls will be billed in increments consisting of an initial period followed by additional 
periods (which may be of the same d~lration as or different d~~ration than the initial 
period) as specified within the applicable service description set forth in Section 4 below. 

3.3 Credit for Incomplete Calls and Wrong Numbers 

3.3.1 The Company will not knowingly charge for incomplete calls or wrong n~~mbers. Upon 
the Customer's req~lest and proper verification, the Company shall promptly adjust and 
credit the Customer's account for charges or payment for any such calls. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Comm~~nications (America) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Centre Court 
Scarborough, ON MIP 4x4 

KDWGP/BARKIU3925.1 
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Original Page No. 3 1 

SECTION 4. - DESCRTPTIONS OF SERVICES 

The following services are provided to Customers subject to the terms and conditions of this Tariff : 

4.1 1+ L o n ~  Distance 

1+ Long Distance Service is a dedicated or switched long distance message telecommunications 
service provided between points located within the State. Except as otherwise stated, 1+ Long 
Distance calls are billed in one-minute increments. 

4.2 Casual Calling Long Distance 

Casual Calling is a long distance service which a customer, not pre-subscribed to the Company, 
may obtain by dialing a specified code (10-10-XXX) to access the Comnpany's interexchange 
services on an ad hoc basis. Except as otherwise stated, these calls are billed in one-minute 
increments. 

4.3 Toll Free Long Distance 

[Reserved for Future Use.] 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Conm~~nications (America) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Centse Court 
Scarborough, ON M1P 4x4 

KDWGPlBARW3925.1 



Yak Coirz~~zrilzicatiolzs (Ainesicn) Iitc. So~ith Dakota Public Utilities Commission Tariff No. 1 
Original Page No. 32 

5.1 1+ Long; Distance 

Per minute 

5.2 Casual Calling 

Per minute 

5.3 Toll Free Service 

[Reserved for Future Use.] 

SECTION 5. - RATE SCHEDULES 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Comm~mications (America) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Centre Court 
Scarborough, ON M1P 4x4 





South  Dakota Public Utilities Commission 
WEEKLY FILINGS 

For the Period of July 1 0 , 2 0 0 3  through July 16, 2 0 0 3  

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo 
within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3705 

CONSUMER COMPLAINTS 

CT03-I07 In the  Matter of t h e  Complaint filed by Barb Haas on  behalf of J ensen  Rock & Sand Inc., 
Mobridge, South Dakota, against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of 
Long Distance Services.  

Complainant's representative states that a four-year prepaid long distance service plan was purchased on May 
5, 2000, and that a 48-month lease agreement was signed at that time. Service was terminated without notice 
on June 3, 2003. The Complainant's representative contends that the respondent has failed to provide the 
contractual services and therefore seeks to have the responsibility to the Lease Company shifted to the 
Respondent. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-108 In the Matter of t h e  Complaint filed by Kevin Parmely, Wessington, South Dakota, against 
S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainant represents that he purchased a ten-year prepaid long distance service plan on October 5, 1998. 
Gn June 5, 2003, service was terminated without notice. Complainant seeks to be reimbursed for the prepaid 
service not provided. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-109 In the Matter of t h e  Complaint filed by Lavonne Oswald, Mitchell, South Dakota, against 
S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainant represents that she purchased a six-year prepaid long distance service plan on November 16, 
2000. On June 5, 2003, service was terminated without notice. Complainant seeks to be reimbursed for the 
prepaid service not provided. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
Intervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-I10 In the Matter of t h e  Complaint.filed by Gerald and Bonnie Larson, ~ r o t o ' n ,  South Dakota, 
against S8S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainants represent that they purchased a ten-year prepaid cellular service plan on December 6, 1996. 
Service quality has always been poor. The respondent has now cut service, therefore the complainants seek to 
be reimbursed for three years of prepaid service that has not been provided. 



Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-I 11 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Sandra Schaack, Henry, South Dakota, against S&S 
CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainant represents that she purchased a seven-year prepaid long distance service plan. In early June 
service was terminated without notice. Complainant seeks to be reimbursed for the prepaid service not 
provided. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-112 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by David Oliver on behalf of Graham Auto, Sioux Falls, 
South Dakota,'against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance 
Services. 

Complainant's representative states that a four-year prepaid long distance service plan was purchased. 
Service was terminated without notice after one month of service. Complainant seeks to be reimbursed for the 
prepaid service not provided. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CTO3-'113 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by David Oliver on behalf of Graham Tire Co., Sioux 
Falls, South Dakota, against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long 
Distance Services. 

complainant's representative states that a four-year prepaid long distance service plan was purchased on 
February 27, 2003. Service was terminated without notice after approximately eight weeks of service. 
Coniplainant seeks to be reimbursed for the prepaid service not provided. . 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-16i4 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Bart Johnson, Revillo, South Dakota, against S&S 
CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainant states that he purchased a seven-year long distance service plan and that service was terminated 
prior to the termination date of the contract. Complainant seeks to be reimbursed for prepaid service not 
provided plus the interest that was paid for financing the service plan. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
Intervention deadline: NIA . , 



CT03-115 In the Ma,tter o f  the Complaint filed by Richard (Rick) and Carolyn Bieber, Trail City, South 
Dakota, against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance 
Services. 

Complainants represent that they purchased a six-year prepaid long distance service plan. On June 5, 2003, 
the complainants discovered that service had been terminated without notice, three years before the end of the 
contract. Complainants seek to be reimbursed for the prepaid service not provided or to have service 
re-established for the balance of the contract. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-116 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Rodney and Linda Dikoff, Onaka, South Dakota, 
against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of Long Distance Services. 

Complainants represent that they purchased a prepaid long distance service plan on December 20, 1999. The 
contract should have provided service through January 2007. On June 5, 2003, the service was terminated 
without notice on June 5, 2003. If the Respondent is unable to re-establish service, Complainants seek to be 
reimbursed for the prepaid service not provided. 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention deadline: NIA 

CT03-'117 In the Matter of the  Complaint filed by Jeffrey Pederson on behalf of Hagan Benefits, Inc., 
Sioux Falls, South Dakota, against S&S CommunicationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss of 
Long Distance Services. 

Complainant's representative states that on December 10, 2002, a four-year prepaid long distance service plan 
was purchased from the respondent. Service was established on February 11, 2003. However, two of the lines 
were not transferred and were billed by the previous carrier at a casual rate. On June 3, 2003, service was 
terminated without notice. Coinplainant seeks to be reimbursed for the prepaid service not provided. 
Complainant also seeks to have the PUC direct the Respondent to pay the previous carrier for the charges on 
the lines that they failed to transfer and to direct the previous carrier to re-rate the charges to the existing plan 
rate and to halt all collection activities until this entire matter is resolved. , 

Staff Analyst: Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 1/03 
ln'tervention deadline: N/A 

CT03-1.18 In the Matter of the Complaint filed by Tammy Korpal on behalf of Midland Publishing and 
Printing, Milbank, South Dakota, against S&S Communi~ationslAlterna-Cell Regarding Loss 
of ~ o n g  Distance Services. . 

Complainant's representative states that a six-year prepaid long distance service plan was purchased from the 
respondent. Service was terminated without notice after approximately 10 months of service. Complainant 
seeks to be reimbursed for the full purchase price of the contract. 

Staff Analyst Jim Mehlhaff 
Staff ~ttorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 07/16/03 
Intervention deadline: N/A 



TELECOMMUNICATIONS 

TC03-I 11 In the Matter of the Establishment of Switched Access Revenue Requirement for Cheyenne 
River Sioux Tribe Telephone Authority. 

On July 10, 2003, Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe Telephone Authority, Eagle Butte, South Dakota, filed a switched 
access cost study developing a revenue requirement and minutes of use that are included in the revenue 
requirement and minutes of use used to determine the switched access rates for the Local Exchange Carriers 
Association. 

Staff Analyst: Harlan Best 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 0711 0103 
lntervention Deadline: 08/01103 

TC03-I 12 In the Matter of the Filing for Approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection Agreement 
between Qwest Corporation and WaveSent, L.L.C. 

On July 16, 2003, the Commission received a filing for Approval of an Amendment to an lnterconnection 
Agreement between Qwest Corporation and WaveSent, L.L.C. According to the parties, the Agreement is 
being amended to include the addition of a Single Point of Presence as set forth in Attachment I and Exhibit A, 
which are attached to the Amendment. The original Agreement was approved on March 7, 2003, in Docket 
TC03-044. Any party wishing to comment on the agreement may do so by filing written comments with the 
Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than August 3, 2001. Parties to the agreement may file 
written responses to the comments no later than twenty days after the service of the initial comments. 

Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 6/03 
Initial Comments Due: 08/05/03 

TC03-1-13 In the Matter of the Filing by Northern Valley Communications, LLC for Approval of 
Revisions to its lntrastate Switched Access Tariff. 

Northern Valley Communications (NVC) has filed revised pages to NVC's lntrastate Switched Access Tariff No. 
I for Commission approval. Previously, NVC was granted exemption from developing intrastate switched 
access rates based on company specific costs. NVC's revised tariff rates are based on a statewide average in 
accordance with ARSD 20: 1 O:27: 12. 

Staff Analyst: Michele Farris 
Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer 
Date Docketed: 0711 6/03 
lntervention Deadline: 08/01/03 

TC03-114 In the Matter of the Application of Yak Communications (America) Inc. for a Certificate of 
Authority to Provide Interexchange Telecommunications Services in South Dakota. 

Yak Communications (America) Inc. has filed an application for a Certificate of Authority to provide resold 
interexchange telecommunications services in South Dakota. The applicant intends to provide resold 
interexchange services,, including 1 + long distance, 10-1 0 casual calling seryices and toll-free services 
throughout South Dakota. 

Staff Analyst: Bonnie Bjork 
Staff Attorney: Kelly Frazier 
Date Docketed: 0711 6103 
lntervention Deadline: 08/01/03 

You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or via internet e-mail. 
You may subscribe or unsubscribe to the PUC mailing lists at http:Ilwww.state.sd.uslpuc 



THE GROUP 
Suite 500 
1200 19th Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20036 
tel (202) 955-9659 
fax (202) 955-9792 
thekdwgroup.com 

D I R E C T  L I N E :  ( 2 0 2 )  955-9600  

E M A I L :  k b a r k e r @ k e l l e y d r y e . c o m  

VIA UPS 

Ms. Debra Elofson 
Executive Director 
So~ltll Dakota P~~b l i c  Utilities Coimnission 
State Capitol Building 
500 East Capitol Aven~~e  
Pierre, SD 57501 

Re: Application of Yak Coinm~~nications (America) Inc., SDPSC Docket No. 
TC03-114 

Dear Ms. Elfoson: 

Enclosed please find for filing one original and ten (10) copies of the Anendnlent 
to the Application of Yak Coinmumications (America) h c .  to provide Interexchatlge 
Telecoi111n~1ilicatioils Services witl~in the State of South Dakota. Please date stamp the duplicate 
of this filing and refsum it in the enclosed self-addressed, postage prepaid envelope. Thatdc you 
for your assistance in this matter and please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or 
concenls. 

Respectfidly st~binitted, 

Katherine E. Barker 
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DATA REQUEST -YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC., SDPUC DOCKET NO. TC03-114 

Question # l :  Please provide a contact name for customer inquiries regarding complaints. 

Answer #1: Andrew Boone, Call Centre Manager; Telephone: 41 6-297-3776; Facsimile: 41 6- 
279-1437; E-mail: andrewcii'~yali.com. 

Question #2: Please provide a description on how the applicant intends to market its 
services, whether the applicant engages in any multilevel marketing and copies of any 
company brochures that is used to assist in the sale of its services. 

Answer #2: Yak does not engage in any mn~~ltilevel marketing of any sort. F~u-tl~er, the Company 
does not ~~t i l ize  the services of tele~narlteters to solicit customers to use Yak's services. The 
Company plans to advertise its dial around services via fliers, an example of which is attached as 
Exlzibit A and plans to place advertisements in the media. 

Question #3: The financial statements submitted as exhibits F are consolidated financial 
statements of the Applicant. The Commission requires current financial statements of the 
applicant. The Commission does not accept consolidated financial statements. Please 
provide a written request for a waiver of current financial statements as provided for in 
ARSD [20:10:24:02(8)] and ARSD [20:10:24:02(15)]. 

Answer #3: Please see ExJzibit B to this Amendment. 

Question #4: Our staff attorney, Kelly Frazier, has reviewed the tariff for the limitations of 
liability and has requested that you make the following changes to your proposed tariff. In 
section 2.5.12 on page 14of the proposed tariff. Please submit replacement pages for page 
14 of the proposed tariff reflecting these changes. 

Answer #4: Please see ExJzibit C. 

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC 
UTILITIES CO 
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BEFORE THE 
SOUTH DAKOTA 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Application of 1 
1 

YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC. 1 
) 

for a Cestificate of Aultllosity to Provide Interexchange ) 
Telecoimn~mications Services witlin the 1 
State of So~ltll Dakota ) 

Docket No. TC03-114 

REQUEST FOR WAIVER 

Pmsuant to ARSD [20:10:24:02(15)], and to all other relevant R~lles and Regulations of 

the South Daltota P~~b l i c  Utilities Co~mnission ("Co~~mission"), Yak Colmn~u~ications (America) 

Inc. ("Yak" or "Company"), by its attoilley and representative, respectfully req~lests that the 

Commission grant its Req~~est  for Waiver of ARSD [20: 10:24:02(8)]. 

Yak is a newly fomed company, and as such does not have significant financial 

statements of its own, however, wit11 the support of its affiliates, Yak has sufficient financial 

capability to provide the resold interexchange telecolmn~uications services requested by this 

Application, and to compete effectively in the ~narltet for such services in So~ltll Daltota. 

Accordingly, to give the Conmission a better representation of the financial s~1ppol-t available to 

and capacity of Y ak, the Company has s~~pplied a consolidated financial statement of its 

publicly-traded parent company Yak Colmn~~ilications (USA) Inc. Yak provided these 

statements to the Colnmission as part of its initial Application as Exhibit D, the audited 

consolidated financial statements for Yak Coinrnunications (USA) Inc. for the period ending 



J~me 30, 2002, including Balance Sheet, Statement of Income, Statement of Deficit, Statement of 

Cash Flows, Schedule of Expenses and A~tditor's Notes. 

WHEREFORE, Yalc Coinm~mications (America) Inc. respectfillly requests that the 

Commission grant its Request for Waiver of ARSD [20:10:24:02(8)], in its Application for a 

Certificate of A~ltllority to Provide Interexchange Teleconm~mications Services within the State 

of So~ltll Dakota. 

Respectfully submitted, 

&??D/zMBQ~, - BY 
Brett H. Freedson 
KELLEY DRYE & WARREN LLP 
1200 19th Street, N.W. 
Suite 500 
Waslington, D.C. 20036 
(202) 955-9600 

Its Attorney 

I<atl~e~ine E. Barker 
THE ICDW GROUP, LLC 
1200 19th Street, N.W. 
Suite 500 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
(202) 955-9659 

DATED: July 3 1,2003 



DATA REQUEST -YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC., SDPUC DOCKET NO. TC03-114 



Yak Contmtz~nicatio~ts (America) IIZC. South Dakota P ~ ~ b l i c  Utilities Conmission Tariff No. 1 
Original Page No. 14 

SECTION 2 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS (Cont'd) 

2.5 Liability of the Company (Cont'cl) 

2.5.1 1 The Company shall be indemnified, defended, and held halmless by the Customer against 
any claim, loss or damage arising directly or indirectly from use of services, involving 
b ~ ~ t  not limited to claims for libel, slander, invasion of privacy, or infringement of 
copyright, arising from either the Customer's own conltn~mications or from any content 
or other use of the services provided to Customer, whether authorized by the Customer or 
not, including infringement of patents arising from combining apparatus and systems of 
the Customer or a third party with facilities provided by the Company. 

2.5.12 Liability of the Company shall be determined in accordance with SDCL 49-13-1, 49- 
13.1.1, and any other applicable law. 

2.5.13 The Company shall not be liable for injury to property or death to persons, including 
claims for payments made ~ulder Workers' Compensation law or under any plan for 
employee disability or death benefits, arising out of, or caulsed by, any act or omission of 
the Custon~er, or the construction, installation, maintenance, presence, use or removal of 
the Customer's facilities or equipment connected, or to be connected to the Company's 
facilities. 

Issued: Effective: 

Issued by: Charles Zwebner, President 
Yak Comt-n~mications (America) Inc. 
610 - 55 Town Centre Court 
Scarborough, ON M1P 4 x 4  



BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF ) ORDER GRANTING 
YAK COMMUNICATIONS (AMERICA) INC. ) CERTIFICATE OF 
FOR A CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO ) AUTHORITY 
P R O V I D E  I N T E R E X C H A N G E  ) 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES IN ) TC03-114 
SOUTHDAKOTA 1 

On July 16, 2003, the Public Utilities Commission (Commission), in accordance with 
SDCL 49-31 -3 and ARSD 20:10:24:02, received an application for a certificate of authority 
from Yak Communications (America) Inc. (Yak). 

Yak proposes to provide resold interexchange services, including 1 + long distance, 
10-10 casual calling services and toll-free services throughout South Dakota. A proposed 
tariff was filed by Yak. The Commission has classified long distance service as fully 
competitive. 

On July 17, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the filing and the 
intervention deadline of August 1, 2003, to interested individuals and entities. No petitions 
to intervene or comments were filed and at its August 19, 2003, meeting, the Commission 
considered Yak's request for a certificate of authority. Commission Staff recommended 
granting a certificate of authority, subject to the condition that Yak not offer a prepaid 
calling card or require or accept deposits or advance payments without prior approval of 
the Commission. Commission Staff further recommended a waiver of ARSD 
20: 1 0:24:02(8). 

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL 
Chapter 49-31, specifically 49-31 -3 and ARSD 20:1 O:24:O2 and 20:l O:24:O3. The 
Commission finds that Yak has met the legal requirements established for the granting of 
a certificate of authority. Yak has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3, demonstrated 
sufficient technical, financial and managerial capabilities to offer telecommunications 
services in South Dakota. Further, the Commission finds that there is good cause to waive 
ARSD 20:l O:24:02(8). The Commission approves Yak's application for a certificate of 
authority, subject to the condition that Yak not offer a prepaid calling card or require or 
accept deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission. As the 
Commission's final decision in this matter, it is therefore 

ORDERED, that Yak's application for a certificate of authority to provide 
interexchange telecommunications services is hereby granted, effective September 15, 
2003, subject to the condition that Yak not offer a prepaid calling card or require or accept 
deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission. It is 

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission waives ARSD 20:l O:24:02(8). It is 



FURTHER ORDERED, that Yak shall file informational copies of tariff changes with 
the Commission as the changes occur. 

?& Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this J g  day of August, 2003. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that this 
document has been served today upon all parties of 
record in this docket, as listed on the docket service 
list, by first class mail, in properly addressed 
envelopes, with charges prepaid thereon. 

By: 

Date: ;//q dl73 

(OFFICIAL SEAL) 

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION: 

~ O B E R T  K. SAHR, ~ h i i r m a n  
I / -  

G 
GA@Y+IANSTN, commissioner 






